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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEWE

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss attributable to owners of Mei Ah Entertainment Group
Limited (the “Company”) for the year is HK$82,259,000 (2016:
HK$66,188,000) and the directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend (2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31st March 2017, the Group
recorded a consolidated revenue of HK$100,091,000 (2016:
HK$126,779,000) and a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$82,259,000 (2016: HK$66,188,000). The
drop in gross profit from HK$31,833,000 to HK$7,979,000
was mainly attributable to drop in revenues attributable
to television operations and cinema operations, increased
amortisation of film rights and increased origination costs
in relation to the upgrade of the Group’s film library into 4K

standard.

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s television
segment for the year dropped from approximately HK$54.0
million to HK$40.3 million due to certain channels were
terminated since the second half of the last financial year. As
at 31st March 2017, the Group provided channels through
various operators, including “RED by HBO” channel through
the platform of HBO in certain Asian territories, HD movie
channel through Chunghwa Telecom MOD platform, a movie
channel through the TVB pay vision in Hong Kong and a movie

channel through TVB pay TV platform in Australia.

In November 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
with HBO Asia to launch and distribute a channel “RED by
HBO” in different Asian countries and territories by stages.
In this cooperation, the Group is responsible for providing
contents of movies and drama series through our content
library, own production and acquisition to the channel. This
cooperation has helped the Group to distribute its content
to Asia and then the global market. It has also helped the
Group to establish its brand name in the TV and content

provider businesses. Through the cooperation, the Group
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receives revenues attributable to various Asian countries and
territories including Malaysia, Indonesia, Thailand, Philippines,
Vietnam, Myanmar, Cambodia and Laos. We look forward to
distributing the channel in other Asian countries and territories.
In addition to subscription revenue, the channel is expected
to start generating advertising revenue after it becomes more
popular in Asia in the future. The Group is exploring further
cooperation opportunities with HBO Asia in content creation

and distribution.

The other channels have also provided steadily contributions
to the Group. Looking forward, the Group will continue to
explore opportunities to develop channels with other operators

and other media platforms.

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s film exhibition
and film rights licensing and sub-licensing segment increased
from approximately HK$15.2 million to HK$22.2 million, the
increase is mainly attributable to revenues from the title “Port
of Call” which received a number of awards in various local
and overseas film festivals, and other new titles released

during the year.

Besides self producing and investing, the Group also makes
use of its wide distribution network developed for years for
its business of film distribution agency. Equipped by the
Group’s film library and through the Group’s experience and
network in program sourcing, the Group is confident that it will
continue to provide high quality and customized programs to

its audiences.

Following the development of its economic environment,
China’s film exhibition industry has grown rapidly in the recent
years. The China theatrical box office income has grown
continuously during the recent years. Taking into account
of the increasing demand in China, the Group continues to
strengthen its film library through acquisition, own production
and co-production. A number of new titles are in the progress
of production and they are expected to be released in the

forthcoming year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEWE

The Group has started to penetrate into the China theatrical
market and established its first theatre in Tianjin since 2011.
The Group’s another theatre in Shanghai has also commenced
operations since 2013. The Group’s theatres are all digital and
equipped with 3-D movie broadcasting functions. The theatre
in Tianjin has 7 screens consisting approximately 1,200 seats
and the one located in Jiading, Shanghai has 10 screens with
approximately 1,600 seats. The theatres contributed revenues
of approximately HK$23.4 million (2016: HK$35.3 million)
in aggregate during the year. The drop is mainly due to the

increased nearby competition.

During the year, the Group made provisions for impairment in
respect of its film rights and property, plant and equipment in
its cinema in Shanghai amounting to HK$18.2 million (2016:
HK$17.9 million) and HK$14.1 million (2016: Nil) respectively.
The provisions were made taken into account the current
market conditions and estimated future recoverable amounts

in respect of the relevant assets.

During the year, the Group’s operating segment of concert
performance held five events and contributed revenues of
approximately HK$11.2 million (2016: HK$19.1 million) and
generated positive operating return to the Group. More events
invested will be released in the forthcoming year. The Group is
of the view that this segment will continue to bring increasing

input to the Group.

In respect of the mobile games applications and video online
segment, the Group has launched its video website “www.116.
tv” and its video apps “116”, which include contents of
films, drama and entertainment news, and also invested in
companies of game development/distribution and online
advertising platforms. The segment attributed revenues of
approximately HK$2.8 million (2016: HK$1.8 million). As
announced in the Company’s announcement dated 4th August
2016, during the year, MAMO Games Limited (“MAMQ?”), one
of the Group’s game development and distribution companies,
allotted certain shares to a new investor at a consideration
of HK$30 million and the transaction constituted a deemed

disposal of interests in MAMO and a gain on deemed disposal
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of approximately HK$15.4 million was recognised by the Group
during the year. The Group also invested in a joint venture
company engaged in online advertising platforms. Looking
forward, the Group considers the new media investment will
ignite a revolution to the industry and fit the expected market

demand.

Revenues attributable to other segments, namely sale and
distribution of films and programs in audio and visual product

format and artiste management were minimal for the year.

The Group’s channel management operations are conducted
through its associated company, namely Hongkongmovie.com
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (“HKM”). Other than
providing services to the Group, HKM also provides playout,
post-production, HD-film restoration, channel management
and mobile application development services to a number of
other media operators. HKM has started to provide its services
under the developed M-OTT platform which enables audiences
to watch content through TV, personal computer, smart
phone, tablet and smart TV and set-top box. HKM is also co-
operating with other institutions to develop more advanced
technology in multimedia area, e.g. content distribution
network, which is expected to contribute future favorable
returns to HKM and the Group. During the year, the Group
disposed certain interests in HKM and recognised a gain on

disposal of approximately HK$7.8 million (2016: Nil).

During the year, following the changes in the investment
market conditions, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss turned to record an fair value gain of
approximately HK$4.1 million (2016: loss of HK$14.3 million).
The investment properties portfolio of the Group contributed a
surplus on revaluation of approximately HK$8.1 million (2016:
deficit of HK$10.4 million). Such unrealised gains/losses have

no effect on the Group’s cash flow.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEWE

On 13th April 2011, the Company received a writ of summons
and statement of claim, which was further amended on 12th
October 2012, 4th April 2014 and 30th March 2017, with no
specified amount of the amount of damages being claimed by
a third party in respect of alleged fraudulent breaches relating
to the management of an associated company which is under
liquidation. The directors of the Company, after taking advice
from the legal advisors which have considered the information
so far available, consider such claim is not strong, and the
Company has a good chance to defend its position. In this
regard, the directors of the Company do not anticipate any
material liabilities would arise from this litigation and there
would be no material impact to the financial position nor
consolidated financial statements of the Company and of the
Group for the year ended 31st March 2017.

Looking forward, the Group will explore other opportunities to
generate greatest returns for its shareholders and reward their

long-term support.

Liquidity and financial resources

At 31st March 2017, the Group has available banking facilities
of approximately HK$78.1 million, of which approximately
HK$10 million were utilised. Certain of the Group’s deposits,
financial assets and properties with aggregate net book values
of HK$120.0 million were pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities. The Group’s gearing ratio of 1.4% as at 31st March
2017 was based on the total of bank loans and obligations
under finance leases of HK$9,778,000 (of which HK$1,677,000,
HK$1,782,000, HK$4,603,000 and HK$1,716,000 are repayable
within one year, in the second year, in the third to fifth year
and after the fifth year respectively) and the shareholders’
funds of approximately HK$681,576,000. The Group’s bank
balances and borrowings are primarily denominated in NTD.
The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely.
During the year ended 31st March 2017, the Group did not
engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit to
any financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign

currency.
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At 31st March 2017, the Group had commitments in respect
of film production, film and program licensing agreements
and other investments amounting to approximately HK$119.4
million in aggregate. The commitments will be financed by the
Group’s internal resources and banking and other available
facilities.

Employees

At 31st March 2017, the Group employed 173 staff (2016:
223). Remuneration is reviewed periodically based on market
trend and individual staff’s performance. In addition to the
basic salaries, staff benefits include discretionary bonus,
medical insurance scheme and contributory provident fund.
The Group also has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company. Employee benefit expenses of HK$49.5 million
(2016: HK$54.8 million) were charged to the profit and loss
during the year.
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D)IFI;{ECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EERSEEEAEZ/IN

Executive directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, aged 58, is the founder, Chairman and
a major shareholder of the Group which was established in
1984, and a recognised leader of the Hong Kong entertainment
industry. With years of experience in the home video and
media entertainment industry, he is responsible for the
corporate strategy and development of the Group. He is the
Vice Chairman of the Federation of Motion Film Producers of
Hong Kong Limited since 1998. He is the father of Mr. Li Tang

Yuk, an executive director of the Company.

Mr. Tong Hing Chi, aged 62, is the Managing Director of
the Group, responsible for the Group’s overall general and
financial administration. He has also been involved in the
Group’s corporate strategy and development since he joined
the Group in 1992. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
20 years of experience in the entertainment and multimedia
industry in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. Tong has been
the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Motion Picture Industry
Association Limited (“MPIA”) since 2001.

Mr. Li Tang Yuk, aged 32, joined the Group in 2008 and
appointed as an executive director of the Company in May
2014. He is mainly responsible for the business development
of the new media sector of the Group and its principal
associated company. He holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration (Honours) from Chu Hai College of Higher
Education. He is the eldest son of Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, the

Chairman of the Company.
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Dr. Dong Ming, aged 59, has been appointed as an Executive
Director and Chief Operating Officer of the Company with
effect from 1st September 2014. He received a Doctorate
Degree from the London School of Economics and Political
Science in 1991 and has over 20 years’ experience in financial
investment and corporate management. Prior to joining
the Company, Dr. Dong worked for Sunbridge Investment
Management Co., Ltd., an investment fund management
company. He had also been a Senior Managing Director
of Bear Stearns, and Director of Merrill Lynch respectively,
and Executive Director of China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited and Tianjin Development Holdings Limited,
both shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Non-executive directors

Mr. Hugo Shong, aged 61, was appointed as the non-
executive director of the Company in February 2007 and is
a partner of IDG Capital. He is currently a member of the
board of directors of International Data Group Inc. and a non-
executive director of WPP plc, which is listed on the London
Stock Exchange. During the year, Mr. Shong was appointed as
the non-executive of IDG Energy Investment Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, on 5th August 2016.

Mr. Shong is now the trustee of Boston University.

Az*DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EERSEEEAEZEIN

ENEL 595 BEEARLLRAHITES
RERLERAR H-Z-NFALA-—HE
e MR- -—FE/AEERBUGH
EERERBLIENV FEB-tF22@
RERTEEEER - MAKRAFA » £F
TEARBREREEEERAR(—RREE
SEEQNT) RABHEARBHEZSRE
BESZ  EMIAFESRPEANTFREBER
ARDARRZERERBRAT(ROER
EBMERZMARAR(EIAM) LH) 2
HITES -

FERITES

MRMAREE 615 R-ZTZLF_REZ
ERADBZFHITES  FHIDG Capital
&% A o 1 38 Blnternational Data Group
Inc. EBEME » AWPP plc (RaHES
REMET) ZHBITES - FR > BEER
—E-RENAEBEZETAIDGHEFERE
EEERAR(BRALTAR) ZFHTE
BoRELEBRARTEAREZGETA

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 &%

11



12

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EERSEEEAEZ/IN

Mr. Alan Cole-Ford, aged 70, has been appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company with effect from
18th October 2011 and is a corporate executive with a
distinguished career in the fields of media, technology and
finance. He served as Executive Vice-President of MGM
Inc., and as Senior Vice-President at Paramount Pictures
Corporation. He was later the CEO of Seattle-based NVST
Inc, a private equity research firm. His business experience in
Asia dates back to 1989 when he first managed Paramount’s
role in the consortium which won the government-sponsored
bidding for Hong Kong’s cable tv franchise. He became a
partner in Hong Kong based Stone Drum Capital in 2005, and
since that time has played a key role in the development and
continues to be the President and the Chief Operating Officer
and a member of its Board of Directors of eChinaCash Inc.,
a Beijing-based card services company which is partnered
with SinoPec Group in China. Over the past decade, he has
also provided consulting and strategic advisory services to a

number of international corporations.

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Lam Lee G., aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1st February 2007.
He holds a BSc in sciences and mathematics, an MSc in
systems science and an MBA from the University of Ottawa
in Canada, a post-graduate diploma in public administration
from Carleton University in Canada, a post-graduate diploma
in English and Hong Kong Law and an LLB (Hons) in law from
Manchester Metropolitan University in the UK, a LLM in law
from the University of Wolverhampton in the UK, a PCLL in
law from the City University of Hong Kong, a Certificate in
Professional Accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong SCS, an MPA and a PhD from the University of Hong
Kong. A former member of the Hong Kong Bar, Dr. Lam is a
Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong, an Honorary Fellow
of CPA Australia and a Fellow of CMA Australia.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

Dr. Lam has over 30 years of multinational general
management, strategy consulting, corporate governance,
investment banking, direct investment and investment fund
management experience, and also serves on the board
of directors, the investment committee and the advisory
committee of a number of publicly-listed companies,
investment funds and NGOs in the Asia Pacific region. Having
served as a Part-time Member of the Central Policy Unit of
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region for two terms, a Member of the Legal Aid Services
Council, a Member of the New Business Committee of the
Financial Services Development Council (FSDC), a Member
of the Derivatives Market Consultative Panel of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx) and a Member of the
General Council and the Corporate Governance Committee
of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies, Dr. Lam is
Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company
Limited, a Member of the Jilin Province Committee (and
formerly a Specially-invited Member of the Zhejiang Province
Committee) of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (CPPCC), a Vice Chairman of Liaoning Chinese
Overseas Friendship Association, Vice Chairman of the United
Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the
Pacific (UNESCAP) Business Advisory Council and Chairman
of its Task Force on Banking and Finance, Chairman of the
Permanent Commission on Economic and Financial Issues
of World Union of Small and Medium Enterprises (WUSME),
Honorary Chairman — Asia Pacific of CMA Australia, a Member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and the Hong Kong Institute
of Arbitrators, an Accredited Mediator of the Centre for
Effective Dispute Resolution (CEDR), a Board Member of the
Australian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong and Macau,
a Board Member of Pacific Basin Economic Council (PBEC),
a Founding Board Member and the Honorary Treasurer of the
Hong Kong-Vietnam Chamber of Commerce, a Member of the

Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council, a founding Member
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of the Hong Kong-Korea Business Council, a Vice President
of the Hong Kong Real Property Federation, Chairman of
Monte Jade Science and Technology Association of Hong
Kong, President of Hong Kong-ASEAN Economic Cooperation
Foundation and a Member of the Court of City University of

Hong Kong.

Dr. Lam was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. on 6th April 2017, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and

the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Guo Yan Jun, aged 63, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in February 2013 has
extensive entrepreneurship experiences and experience of
corporate operation and management. Mr. Guo graduated
from China People’s University with a Diploma in Law in 1984.
Mr. Guo is presently an independent non-executive director
of Strong Petrochemical Holdings Limited and MIE Holdings
Corporation (companies listed on the Stock Exchange). He is
also the Chairman of CNHK Tech Co. Ltd. and CNHK Media
Limited. During the year, Mr. Guo resigned as the independent
non-executive director of Honghua Group Limited on 29th
March 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic, aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 1st
March 2016, is an seasoned executive in the information and
communication technologies industry. He has served Hong
Kong Telecommunications (“HKT”) for 34 years and has held
many senior management positions in his tenure of service.
Prior to his retirement at HKT, he was the Managing Director
of Business Processes and responsible for reviewing and
overhauling HKT’s business processes and related systems.
Mr. Leung had also been the Managing Director of TV & New
Media, where he was responsible for now TV, MOOV and
now.com.hk, as well as business development of Internal
Protocol Television (“IPTV”) opportunities internationally. Mr.
Leung joined Cable & Wireless HKT’s multimedia business
unit in 1994. His previous appointments also included the
Executive Vice President of Consumer Marketing & Business,
and responsible for marketing, product development and
management of PCCW’s consumer telephone and broadband
services.

Mr. Leung had served the Communication Association of
Hong Kong as a member of the Executive Committee from
2006 to 2010. He was also a member of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council’s Entertainment Industry Advisory

Committee member between 2008 to 2010.

Mr. Leung graduated from the University of Toronto with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in 1979, and from Canada’s University

of Windsor with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in 1980.

Senior management

Mr. Chan Lun Ho, aged 47, is the Company Secretary of the
Company and Group’s financial controller and is responsible
for all financial and accounting matters of the Group. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 20 years of auditing

and accounting experience. He joined the Group in July 2002.
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Compliance with the code on corporate
governance practices

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and the code provisions (the “Code”) as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The principles adopted by the Company emphasise a quality
board, transparency and accountability to shareholders. In
the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the
Code for the year ended 31st March 2017, with the exception
of the deviations in respect of appointment term of non-
executive directors as mentioned below:-

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should
be appointed for specific term. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive directors of the Company,
however, they are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. Accordingly
the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to deal with the requirement in respect of the
appointment terms of non-executive directors as required
under the code provision.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of
conduct and the required standard of dealings and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors for
the year ended 31st March 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board of directors

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the

preparation of financial statements, which shall give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. Details of the
basis of preparation of the financial statements are set out in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The Board
is also responsible for formulating the Group’s long-term
strategy, determining and approving the Group’s significant
transactions and supervising the management to ensure
thorough implementation of the Group’s policies and effective
performance of their duties. The Board also conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group. Other decisions are delegated to management.
As at 31st March 2017, the Board comprised nine Directors,
including four executive Directors — Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (the
Chairman), Mr. Tong Hing Chi (the Chief Executive Officer), Mr.
Li Tang Yuk and Dr. Dong Ming, two non-executive Directors
— Mr. Hugo Shong and Mr. Alan Cole-Ford, and three
independent non-executive Directors — Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo
Yan Jun and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic. Biographies of the

Directors are set out on pages 10 to 15.

There is no non-compliance with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules. Other than Mr. Li Tang Yuk who is the eldest
son of Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, the Chairman of the Company, there
is no relationship among members of the Board and the

independent non-executive directors.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance

with the terms of the guidelines.
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Board of directors (Continued)

During the year, the Board held four board meetings and one
general meeting. The attendance of the directors are set out
below:

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing TEESE
Mr. Tong Hing Chi BEREE
Mr. Li Tang Yuk TEBEE
Dr. Dong Ming EHEL

Mr. Hugo Shong RERERR B

Mr. Alan Cole-Ford

Dr. Lam Lee G. MREEL
Mr. Guo Yan Jun BERELEE
Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic REIEE

Note:

(a) The directors were unable to attend the general meeting
due to their respective engagements.

During the year, all directors were provided with regular
updates on the Group’s business and operations. The
Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by engaging in business activities beneficial
to the Group in their respective fields, including attending
seminar, workshops, conference and courses and self-
studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
so as to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

Chairman and the chief executive officer
Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer are separate and are not performed
by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies and policies of the Company. The Chief Executive
Officer, supported by the senior management, is responsible
for managing the Group’s businesses and responsibilities,
implementing major strategies, making day-to-day decisions
and coordinating overall business operations.
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Board Committees

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is

supported by three board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on

matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

(1) Audit Committee
The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21
to 3.23 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s financial
statements and accounts, and annual and interim
report; (b) to discuss and review with the auditors of the
Company on the scope and findings of the audit and the
external auditor’s management letter; and (c) to review
the financial and accounting policies and practices,
financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems of the Group. The audit committee consists
of three independent non-executive directors of the
Company, namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun
and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic. The chairman of the

committee is Dr. Lam Lee G..

The audit committee held two meetings with the
Company’s auditor during the year. All of the then

members attended the meetings.

The Group’s unaudited interim results, annual audited
results and the system of internal control during the year
ended 31st March 2017 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, which is of opinion that the preparation of
such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure

have been made.
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Board Committees (Continued)

()

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee according to the relevant provisions of
the Listing Rules with written terms of reference. Its
primary duties are to (a) make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of directors and senior management and
the remuneration of non-executive director; (b) establish
formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policy; (c) review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (d) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior

management.

The remuneration committee consists of three
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun and Mr. Leung
Tak Sing, Dominic. The chairman of the committee is Dr.

Lam Lee G..

During the year, the remuneration committee met once
to discuss remuneration related matters. All of the then
members attended the meeting. During the meeting, the
performance and remuneration of the executive directors
were assessed and the policy for which was discussed

and approved.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and senior
management are set out in note 39 and note 11 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Board Committees (Continued)
(3)

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee
according to the relevant provisions of the Listing
Rules with written terms of reference. Its primary duties
are to: (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (c)
access the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and (d) make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The nomination committee consists of five members,
including three independent non-executive directors of
the Company, namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun
and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic, and two executive
directors of the Company, namely Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and
Mr. Tong Hing Chi. The chairman of the committee is Mr.
Guo Yan Jun. The nomination committee determined the
policy for the nomination of directors and the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted to
select and recommend candidates for directorship during
the year.

During the year, the nomination committee met once, all
of the then members attended the meeting.

Under the Company’s policy concerning diversity of
Board members, the nomination committee reviews and
assesses Board composition on behalf of the Board
and recommends the appointment of new director when
necessary.
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Board Committees (Continued)

(8) Nomination Committee (Continued)
In designing the Board’s composition, the nomination
committee has considered a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The nomination
committee will also consider factors based on the
Company’s business model and specific needs from time
to time in determining the optimum composition of the
Board.

Auditor’s remuneration

The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 41 to 52. Amount of approximately
HK$1,600,000 was charged to the Group’s consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31st March 2017 in
respect of the audit service provided by the auditor of the

Company.

Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Group and making recommendations to the Board; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and reviewing the Group’s compliance with the
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of
the Company. During the year, the policy for the corporate

governance of the Group was received and determined.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of risk
management and internal controls and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Management of the Company has monitored the strategic plan
and performance, established ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group, and set up a set of comprehensive policies, standards
and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk
controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records; and
for ensuing the reliability of financial information to achieve
a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors.

The following procedures have been established in connection
with the risk management and internal controls within the
Group:-

1. Control environment including organization structure,

limit of authority, reporting lines and responsibilities;

2. Risk management self-assessment and internal control
review conducted from time to time by the internal audit

function and external auditor of the Group;

3. Appropriate risk management measures such as written
policies and procedures;

4.  Effective information platforms to facilitate internal and
external information flow; and

5.  Any material internal control defects will be reported to
and discussed by the Audit Committee and the Board,
and management to investigate and take appropriate
measures to respond to and migrate the defects.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls
(Continued)

The Board has performed an annual review on the

effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal

controls of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year

ended 31st March 2017 with no material issues noted and the

Board consider them effective and adequate.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information to ensure inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the inside information can be
disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner in

accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.

Amendments to the Bye-Laws of the
Company

The following amendments to the Bye-Laws of the Company,

which was resolved by the shareholders of the Company in

the annual general meeting dated 30th September 2016, was

made during the year:

To cater for the increasing demand from investors holding
securities in listed companies through Central Clearing and
Settlement System (“CCASS”) for attending the shareholders’
meetings in person or appointing proxies to vote on their
behalf, the following provision regarding the rights of HKSCC
Nominees Limited (or any successor thereto) to appoint
multiple proxies/corporate representatives was included in the

Bye-Laws of the Company:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Amendments to the Bye-Laws of the
Company (Continued)

Where that shareholder is a recognized clearing house
(within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571) of the Laws of Hong Kong) or its nominee(s),
it may authorise such person or persons as it thinks fit to
act as its representative(s) or proxy(ies) at any shareholders’
meetings or any meetings of any class of shareholders
provided that, if more than one person is so authorised, the
authorization or proxy form must specify the number and
class of shares in respect of which each such person is so
authorised. The person so authorised will be deemed to
have been duly authorised without the need of producing
any documents of title, notarized authorization and/or further
evidence for substantiating the facts that it is duly authorised
and will be entitled to exercise the same power on behalf
of the recognized clearing house as that clearing house
or its nominee(s) could exercise as if it were an individual

shareholder of the Company.

Communication with Shareholders and
Shareholders’ Right

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair

disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its

performance and activities. Enquiries and suggestions from

shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) or investors

are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders may be put

through the following channels:

1. by mail to the Company’s head office at 5/F, Mei Ah
Centre, 28 Chun Choi Street, Tsueng Kwan O Industrial
Estate, Kowloon;

2. by telephone at telephone number (852) 2751 3388;

3. by fax at fax number (852) 2799 3643; or

4. by email at webmaster@meiah.com.
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Communication with Shareholders and
Shareholders’ Right (Continuea)

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, general meetings shall
be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
members holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
in aggregate not less than one-tenth of such of the paid up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such
requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the office.
If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of such requisition proceed duly to convene a special
general meeting, the requisitionists themselves or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them may convene the special general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may

be convened by the Directors.

If a Shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting not being the person to be proposed, wishes to
propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a Director
at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong. The
Notice (i) shall give his intention to propose the Candidate
for election as a Director; (ii) must include the personal
information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (iii)
must be signed by the Shareholder concerned including the
information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder
and signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to
be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal data.
The minimum length of the period, during which the Notice
are given, shall be at least 7 days and that (if the Notice
is submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment
of the Notice shall commence on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general

meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2017.

Principal activities and analysis of operations
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Business review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31st
March 2017 is set out in the section head “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 4 to 9 to this annual report. Description
of the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are disclosed
in this Annual Report.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 53.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Principal investment properties

Details of the movements in investment properties of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of those principal investment properties
are set out on pages 199 to 200.

Share issued in the year

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31st March
2017 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Distributable reserves

At 31st March 2017, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$202,645,000, comprising contributed
surplus of HK$235,020,000 less accumulated losses of
HK$32,375,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus shall not be distributable if there are

reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable

to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
198.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the

year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the

year.
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Share option scheme
A share option scheme of the Company was adopted by the

shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting
held on 1st September 2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The
principal terms are set out as follows:

(@) Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to attract
and retain the best quality personnel for the development
of the Group’s businesses; and to provide additional
incentives to directors and employees, consultants,
agents, advisers, customers, suppliers, business and
joint venture partners or any employee thereof, of the
Company, its subsidiaries and its associated companies
and to promote the long term financial success of the
Group by aligning the interest of option holders to
shareholders of the Company.

(b) Participants

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the board of directors (the
“Board”) may offer to grant share options (the “Options”)
to any director and employee, consultant, agent, advisor,
customer, supplier, business and joint venture partner or
any employee thereof, of the Company, its subsidiaries
and its associated companies (“Qualifying Grantee”) as
the Board may in its absolute discretion select.

(c) Administration
The Share Option Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Board. Subject to the provisions of
the Listing Rules and applicable law and other regulations
from time to time in force, the Board’s administrative
powers include the authority, in its discretion:-

(i)  to select Qualifying Grantees to whom Options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme;

(i) to determine, subject to the requirements of the
Listing Rules and the law, the time of the grant of
Options;
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Share option scheme (Continued)
Administration (Continued)

(c)

(iii)

(iv)
v)

(vii)

to determine the number of Shares to be covered
by each Option granted under the Share Option
Scheme;

to approve forms of option agreements;

to determine the terms and conditions of any
Option. Such terms and conditions may include:

° the subscription price;

° the Option Period, which shall be not greater
than the period prescribed by the Listing Rules
from time to time (which is, as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, a
period of 10 years from the date of grant);

° the minimum period, if any, for which an
Option must be held before it vests or
becomes exercisable in whole or in part (the
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify
any minimum holding period);

° the performance targets, if any, that must be
achieved before the Option can be exercised
(the Share Option Scheme itself does not
specify any performance target);

° the amount, if any, payable on application or
acceptance of the Option and the period within
which payments must be made;

° the period, if any, during which Shares allotted
and issued upon exercise of the Option shall
be subject to restrictions on dealings, and the
terms of such restrictions;

to construe and interpret the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and Options granted pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme;

to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and
regulations relating to the Share Option Scheme,
including rules and regulations relating to sub-
schemes established for the purpose of qualifying
for preferred treatment under foreign laws and for
benefits intended solely for any particular type of
Qualifying Grantees; and
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

f)

(9)

Administration (Continued)

(viii) subject to the provisions relating to grant to
substantial shareholders and independent non-
executive directors and their respective associates
in the Share Option Scheme, to vary the terms and
conditions of any option agreement (provided that
such variation is not inconsistent with the terms of
the Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme).

Life of the Share Option Scheme and grant of Options
The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of adoption.

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Board shall
be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing on
the date of adoption to make an offer for the grant of an
Option to any Qualifying Grantee as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance of Option
offer

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for
acceptance by the Qualifying Grantee concerned for
a period of 28 days from the date of the offer (or such
longer period as the Board may specify in writing).

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the Option offer.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular
Option shall be such price as the Board may in its
absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of the
relevant Option but the subscription price shall not be
less than whichever is the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the Subscription Price Reference
Date; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five Business Days immediately preceding the
Subscription Price Reference Date; and (jii) the nominal
value of a Share.

Option Period

The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an Option shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period
must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant Option.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of Shares available under the Share
Option Scheme

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Overriding Limit

The limit on the number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in
issue from time to time. No options may be granted
under any schemes of the Company if this will result
in the limit being exceeded.

Mandate Limit

In addition to the limit set out in sub-paragraph (h)
(i) above and prior to the approval of a Refreshed
Mandate Limit as referred to in sub-paragraph (h)
(iii) below, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, being
563,303,452 Shares (the “Initial Mandate Limit”),
based on 5,633,034,525 issued Shares as at the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme or any other schemes will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the 10%
limit.

Refreshing of Mandate Limit

The Company may by ordinary resolution of the
Shareholders refresh the Mandate Limit provided
the Company shall issue a circular containing such
information as required by the Listing Rules to
the Shareholders before such approval is sought.
However, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under all of the schemes of the Company under the
limit as refreshed (the “Refreshed Mandate Limit”)
must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the Refreshed Mandate
Limit. Options previously granted under the
schemes (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed in accordance with any of the schemes
or exercised options) will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of Shares available under the Share

Option Scheme (Continued)

(iv) Grant to specifically identified Qualifying

(v)

Grantees

Specifically identified Qualifying Grantees may be
granted Options beyond the Mandate Limit. The
Company may in addition seek separate approval
by its Shareholders in general meeting for granting
Options beyond the Mandate Limit provided that
the Options in excess of the limit are granted only
to Qualifying Grantees specifically identified by the
Company and a circular containing such information
as required by the Listing Rules is issued to the
Shareholders before such approval is sought.

Limit for each Qualifying Grantee

The number of Options that can be granted to any
Qualifying Grantee during any 12-month period shall
be subject to the restriction that the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
Options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted
in such 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue. Where any further grant of Options
to a Qualifying Grantee would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant representing in aggregate over
1% of the Shares in issue, such further grant shall
be subject to separate approval by the Shareholders
in general meeting with the relevant Qualifying
Grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.
Prior to seeking such approval, the Company shall
issue a circular containing such information as
required by the Listing Rules to the Shareholders.

As at 31st March 2017, the number of securities

available for issue under the Share Option Scheme

was 592,311,452, having approximately 9.99% of
5,9283,738,525, being the number of issued shares of the
Company at 31st March 2017 and the date of the annual

report respectively.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
Movements of the share options granted under the Share

Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

Number of options

REnE
Outstanding
at the Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding
beginning during during during  at the end
of the year the year the year the year of the year

REMRITE Fhk FRITE FRRE RERKRTE

34

Directors B
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing TEEEL 6,500,000 - - 6,500,000
Mr. Tong Hing Chi BERLEE 6,500,000 - - 6,500,000
Mr. Li Tang Yuk SRR 4,560,000 - - 4,560,000
Dr. Dong Ming EREL 6,500,000 - - 6,500,000
Mr. Hugo Shong REREGR T 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
Mr. Alan Cole-Ford Alan Cole-Ford %4 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000
Dr. Lee G. Lam MREEL 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
Mr. Guo Yan Jun PERELE 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic RZEF%4% - - - -

Employees of =]
— the Group —F5H 17,274,000 - - 15,846,000
— An associated Company —HE DT 4,668,000 - - 4,566,000
Other participants Hih2HE 5,670,000 - — 5,570,000
57,672,000 - - 56,042,000

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED XS IR EAE BB R L Al




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors of the Company
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (Chairman)

Mr. Tong Hing Chi (Managing Director)
Mr. Li Tang Yuk

Dr. Dong Ming

Non-executive directors
Mr. Hugo Shong
Mr. Alan Cole-Ford

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Lam Lee G.

Mr. Guo Yan Jun

Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic

The directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts that are
significant in relation to the Company’s
business

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance

in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its

subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which

a director of the Company had a material interest, whether

directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

Biographical details of directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management

are set out on pages 10 to 15.

EEEHRE
EAFESE
FAREBEZEABREABULERAREEZES
M

MITES

TEEELE (FE)
EERSE (EFHEE)
FEBEE

ERELT

ERITESR
RERERR 4
Alan Cole-Ford %4

BIUFRTES
mMEEEL
BERERE
REFEE

RADBEERRBFRASG L EBARE
RRBZ AR BmESRRERET -

EEZBRBEH
RREERRETAS LEREEEEH
MEAR A T T Y AR — F QKT8
i CEERERIN) 2 BRI A %

EFREXXFREAMZIEX
X5 RERGVPRZEXHG

ARE - EMBARHERNE R AHES
B NAARESEEIHERAETRERE
ANBERAKSERBEREE  MRFRE
FFRNEMNSEFEIEARS  ZHEE
5o

EEREREEARZBE

EENRGEBEEBABZERBENENEI10E
158 °
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests EERERTRARRELR
and/or short positions in the shares, EAFEMAREERSEMEM
underlying shares and debentures of the HBEE B - HRBRD R R
Company or any specified undertaking BEZHEER WKkE

of the Company or any other associated
corporation

At 31st March 2017, other than the interests of the directors in R-ZE—+tE=A=+—0 BREERER
the share options granted during the year as disclosed under ERTFEREGN BRESE I —REE) 2
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme”, the interests BRI BEAQTKRESZRPAEERN([F
and short positions of each director and chief executive in the FR B D) EXVEE 2R BEFE 2 ERLMAT
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company MEERIBERAANTIEEZEN SEERES
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the THABEARDT R EBE LB (R HGM
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the ZER)ZRMD - HERDREER &
register required to be kept by the Company under Section HRARBWT -

352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company were as follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the Company (a) EBEREEOETZFATEER
% of the
issued share
capital of the
Company as

Number of shares beneficially held at 31st March
— Long position 2017
EaRAzERMBA — 8 R-ZE—tF
Personal Family Corporate =A=+—H
Name of director interests interests interests EELATERT
ERElR BAER XEES EEER BFEZESL
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing 317,097,500 189,843,750 2,435,827,550 49.68%
ZTEEEE Note (i) Note (ii)
BIEE () BEE (i)
Mr. Tong Hing Chi 16,875,000 — — 0.30%
BEERLE
Mr. Li Tang Yuk 1,940,000 — — 0.03%
=R EEE
Dr. Dong Ming 5,000,000 — — 0.09%
EHELT
Notes: i
(i)  These shares are held by Ms. Li Pik Lin, the spouse of () ZERVBHZEHEEEZHRBTZ
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing. BELtiER -
(i)  These shares are held by Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited, (i) ZERVHAZEHELEERESZ
a company beneficially controlled by Mr. Li Kuo Hsing. AFKuo Hsing Holdings Limited
BE-
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests
and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any specified undertaking
of the Company or any other associated
corporation (Continued)

(b) Interest in subsidiaries of the Company

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing personally holds non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each in the following subsidiaries:

ESERE

EFRESTHRASRELF -
FAFMEMGERGRIEMEM
HBGEEZ R - HERG R R
HECHGR WXkE@

(b) FLFIMEBLAFER
ZHELEBABETIIHNBERARAER
HE1ETZEBRERELRD

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

FRiSERRIE

EIER Dz & B

Personal interests

Name £ BAER
Mei Ah Investment Company Limited EDYERERRAT 500,000
Mei Ah Press Limited EUMEBRAT 100,000
Mei Ah Video Production Company Limited EnHFEERRAR 10,000

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its
associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year, the directors
and chief executives (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company and its associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

BrEuiE SN MEREMER - XAF - H
MEAE - FARMERRAEEEEEETT
VML ERARVEBERESTHAE
(BERSEzZEBRRB T \BZFR)ER
AABHEMABEEE 2 RG - HERONE
FER 2 EMERAR

BrEuiES  REREMER  SEBREKR
BITRAEEBERSZEBRARM T R
ZFR)LEER A DT REARBEBEEE
o TEERFTEARBARQE R EBH
FERD (ARREFNEEER(NER)) 2
EAER - MREEFEROIZETIRE -
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Substantial shareholders’ interests and/
or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company
The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31st
March 2017, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These
interests are in addition of those disclosed above in respect of
the directors and chief executives.

Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.02 each in the Company

Ho Chi Sing fAI& &

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Associates L.P.
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP Associates Ltd.
Zhou Quan FE&

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund L.P.

Li Pei Chin ZZER A7

Notes:
(@) Included the 370,205,516 shares as set out in note (b).
(b) Referred to the same parcel of shares and included the

307,385,666 shares held by IDG-Accel China Growth Fund
L.P.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED £ Si iR 4 & & BB R 2 |

Note

BaE

@
(b)
(b)
(b)

FEBRRNAELXTFZGRHER
BRipZHESR HiKE

RIBMRESEPIEXVEEIHRAFEZ
FTERREBECMER R-ZT-—tF=A
Zt—H  ALAEEENUTEIERRE
BEARBCHITRAS% H L2 EHE KK
B RERBERLNREEBESRES

THRABEUIN R -

SREEC.2EBRXTZF AT HER
Number of shares — Long position
EiH#A — ¥E

Corporate

interests

EEER

398,840,000
370,205,516
370,205,516
370,205,516
307,385,666
334,042,000

wiat -

% of the issued
share capital of
the Company as
at 31st March
2017
R-S—t#F
=RA=+-—H
HFELTERIT
BFEZHESL

6.73%
6.25%
6.25%
6.25%
5.19%
5.64%

(a) BIEMEE(b) FrEi2 370,205,516 R AZ{D ©

(b) 3ER — LBk 5 & & FEIDG-Accel China
Growth Fund L.P.3¥%8 2 307,385,666 %

B e
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Management contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration

of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are

as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 16%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 38%
Sales

— the largest customer 19%
— five largest customers in aggregate 45%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

Connected transactions

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31st March 2017 is set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. These
transactions do not constitute connected transactions under
the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of
at least 25% of the Company’s issued shares at the date of
this report.

Corporate Governance Report
Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out on
pages 16 to 26.

ESERE

TEaH

ARDFRE NI T I R EAARA L
A2 BREMEABGER 2 EBRTEAE
o

FEREERER
FEEEEIBRBBRE B2 FER
BRHEEEEILLMT :

30 1]
— RAMES 16%
— BEREEREE 38%
SHEHE
- BREF 19%
— EREFAR 45%

BEE WEZBBAREIMBEESMAE
BAQARBRARS% U E2RRBBHEEZEE
EftEENEF 2 Es -

RERXS
AEBRBZE-_Z—tF=A=+—HLHEF
EiUzEREALRGZHERNGEH
BHERMTI/ e ZEXZ A TER LT A
BT ZEERS o

BHATFRE

REFAADTARMEZEHNRAALAE
B AAABBRARE BPEFAL
ATBITRBBD 25% ZRADRISRE -

EREIRE
AR EEEABERNE16E26H -
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Directors’ interests in competing business
None of the directors, management or shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) has an interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the business
of the Group.

Permitted indemnity provisions

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors
of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or an associated company (if made by the Company).

Auditor
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Li Kuo Hsing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th June 2017

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED £ Si iR 4 & & BB R 2 |
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Mei Ah Entertainment Group
Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Mei Ah Entertainment
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 53 to 197, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2017;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which

include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31st March 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

B XA R

BXTERERNAKREFRLFBRE
(REFRZFMAELHIBER L A])

BR

EMEEFAHAR
XDRLENAEEERATAUATEHEER
ANREMBAR(UTHBEIEEE])HEH
MES3E197 ENFE UK MKREIE

e MN-ZE—tHE=ZA=1+—BWHEEE
=L E
o EHEZHIEFEWNGEWER

s HBEZRLFENGSEEWER
s HBEZALFENGSEZZDX
s HBEZRLFENGERERER R

s HFRMBERRMNE SERIBRETHEX
B o

BEMER

EMRL ZEHEAUBRRERETE
BSOS EAIKE B BREERNE
BEMPetRRTEERER-Z-—tF=A
ZSt-BENGREMBRAREBEZALSF
ENGEVBRERGERENE X8
REB(DRARODNREREZ HEME -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZHEHRE

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities

in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

follows:

e Impairment of film rights
e Impairment of property, plant and equipment of a cinema

located in Shanghai

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 5 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

BERAERE
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HANGARBRENETBRREEZNS
B EEEERERMETEREAUBER
ERHABABETEEIN - RMTEYE
EERRGEBNER -

RMEFT PR WERETSEMRMMOT

o  EXRERE
e [WUREBHHERENME  BERRE
AR



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Impairment of film rights
Refer to notes 2.10, 4(a) and 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

As at 31st March 2017, the carrying amounts of film rights
were HK$45,233,000.

In view of the box office performance of the film right
distribution during the year was below expectation,
management performed an impairment assessment for film
rights as at 31st March 2017 and the carrying values were
written down to their recoverable amounts, which were
measured at the higher of fair value less costs of disposal

and value in use.

Management determined the recoverable amounts by using
value in use approach, which were calculated based on
present value of future cash flows directly generated by
the film rights. The forecast of future cash flows involved
judgements regarding the future cash inflows generated from
forecast revenue, which included types of revenue streams
that the film rights could be distributed, the number of and
duration of planned circulations and expected cash outflows
for the costs for these circulations and distributions.
Impairment of film rights recognised for the year ended 31st
March 2017 amounted to HK$18,192,000.

We consider the impairment assessment of film rights as
a key audit matter due to the significant judgements and
estimates made by management on the recoverability of the

film rights.

B XA R

RBaFstEn =)
TR RERE
BESHGREUERERMEE2.10 ~ 4@) K15 °

REZB—+tHFE=A=+—H ' SZMENER
HE£ %84 45,233,00058 7T °
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZHEHRE

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Impairment of film rights (Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood, evaluated and tested the key controls over
the recoverability assessment performed by management on
the film rights.

We assessed the methodology used by management in
determining the recoverable amounts with reference to the
industry practice.

We compared the fair value less costs of disposal
determined by the management to available information
through market research and compared the value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal in determining the
recoverable amounts of the film rights.

We evaluated and challenged management’s assessment
on the expected revenue to be generated by the film
rights based on historical data and our knowledge on the
market and industry. We tested the expected revenue from
circulation and distribution of the film rights by comparing
with market information (including box office income)
of other similar types of films in the market and sales

agreements entered into subsequent to the year end.

We also evaluated and challenged management’s
assumptions of the estimated circulation and distribution
costs to be incurred by comparing the ratio of these
budgeted costs to the budgeted revenue with other
comparable films based on historical data of similar films

and industry research.

We performed sensitivity analysis around the key
assumptions for forecast revenue and estimated circulation
and distribution costs and considered the extent of change
in those assumptions that would result in impairment.

Based on the procedures performed, we found significant
judgements and estimates made by management on the
recoverability of the film rights to be supportable based on

the available evidence.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 5 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment of a cinema
located in Shanghai
Refer to notes 2.11, 4(b) and 13 to the consolidated financial

statements.

As at 31st March 2017, the Group had property, plant and
equipment, before impairment provision, of approximately
HK$14,058,000 of a cinema located in Shanghai, the
People’s Republic of China.

For the year ended 31st March 2017, the Group’s cinema
in Shanghai, which represents a separate cash generating
unit (“CGU”), has been making losses and management
considered that there was an indicator that property, plant
and equipment of this cinema might be impaired. Therefore,
management performed an impairment assessment on the
property, plant and equipment of that CGU and the carrying
values were written down to their recoverable amounts,
which were measured at the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use.

For determination of the fair value less costs of disposal,
management performed valuation based on market approach
using market values of property, plant and equipment with
similar type and condition as compared to those of the
Group and adjusted the market values to reflect the type
and condition of property, plant and equipment held by the
Group.

Management determined the value in use by using income
approach, which was calculated based on present value of
future cash flows directly generated by the CGU. Significant
judgement was required in relation to the key assumptions
made in the cash flow forecast including revenue growth
rate and discount rate.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment in that CGU
recognised for the year ended 31st March 2017 amounted to
HK$14,058,000.

B XA R
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment of a cinema
located in Shanghai (Continued)

We consider the impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment as key audit matter due to the significant
judgements and estimates made by management on the

recoverability of the property, plant and equipment.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on the recoverable amounts of property, plant

and equipment included:

— Obtained, understood and evaluated management’s
impairment assessment including the identification of
impairment indicators and we agreed with management’s

assessment result that there was an impairment indicator;

— Understood and assessed the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies used by the management based
on our knowledge of the business and industry;

— Compared the fair value less costs of disposal
determined by the management to available information
through market research;

— Compared the current year actual results with prior year
forecast to consider the accuracy of historical forecasts
and understood the explanation for deviation of the
actual results compared with prior year forecast;

— Tested the mathematical accuracy of the underlying

value-in-use calculations;
— Compared the value in use and fair value less costs of

disposal in determining the recoverable amounts of the
property, plant and equipment.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment of a cinema
located in Shanghai (Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

In addition, we performed the following procedures over
management’s key assumptions used in the discounted cash
flow model including:

— Benchmarked the revenue growth rate adopted by the
Group to the revenue growth rates adopted by other
market players;

— Evaluated and discussed discount rate used in the
calculations by comparing with the industry or market
data;

— Performed sensitivity analysis to assess the potential
impact of reasonably possible changes to the key

assumptions.

Based on the procedures described, we found the judgement
made by management in relation to the recoverable amount
of property, plant and equipment of a cinema located in
Shanghai was supportable by available evidence.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZHEHRE

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on

our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29th June 2017
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Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains/(losses) — net

Selling, distribution and marketing
expenses

Administrative expenses

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance income — net

Share of (losses)/profits of associates
Share of losses of joint ventures

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Wz

SHERA

EF

HA A

HitWzs, /(BE) — B8
HE  BOTRMSERRX
THR X

EEBR

R TN
BE AR A

BB — FHE

FEMEIEE N E) (B18) /FB
iEEEhEEE

FRFR S IRATE R
PR B

FABER

THIHE G -
RRBEEA
FEEER

Loss per share attributable to owners & T A AEESREE

of the Company

Basic and diluted loss per share

The notes on page 61 to 197 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Note
Kt

16
17

10

melRmk

Year ended 31st March

BEZA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FExT
100,091 126,779
(92,112) (94,946)
7,979 31,833
16,706 13,662
31,679 (15,386)
(23,892) (11,964)
(116,877) (91,652)
(84,405) (73,507)
1,314 1,066
(234) (546)
1,080 520
(949) 2,485
(797) —
(85,071) (70,502)
(396) (247)
(85,467) (70,749)
(82,259) (66,188)
(3,208) (4,561)
(85,467) (70,749)
HK cents HK cents
¥4/ B
(1.39) (1.13)

BOIE17HZHEARLGEMBHRR 2B

RERRD ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e ZEWER

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income,
net of tax:

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Surplus on revaluation of buildings

Deferred taxation arising from
revaluation surplus of buildings

Items that may be reclassified
to profit or loss

Fair value (losses)/gains on available-
for-sale financial assets — net

Release of available-for-sale financial
assets revaluation reserve upon
disposal

Impairment losses on available-for-sale
financial assets

Currency translation differences

Release of exchange reserve upon
disposals of subsidiaries

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

Total comprehensive loss
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive loss for the
year

FABR
Hth2EMES - HRREK :
TEEM T HERm &
ZIEH

BFEMRHR
BFEHRBREE
ZIEFERLTE

B BEERm % ZEH
AHHEMBREEZARE
(B18), W& — B8
HETHEENBEER
BREMGRE
AHHEMBEERERR
ERBREZEH
HEME A R R RN

BE i

FARMBEKRES -
KRR

FRARXEHRER

THREEGREESIRENE :

RARERA
FFERER

FAZEGREH

The notes on page 61 to 197 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 5 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

Note
btaE

13(a)

29

20(a)

34(b)

Year ended 31st March
BE=HA=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E=—+t&F —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEiT FET
(85,467) (70,749)
1,964 1,595
(380) (311)
(1,474) 11,821

- (10,554)

- 1,150

5,435 1,887
(244) —

5,301 5,588
(80,166) (65,161)
(77,693) (60,231)
(2,473) (4,930)
(80,166) (65,161)

FOIE17HZMEARLGEMBHRR 2B
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
nEREERERER

As at 31st March

R=BA=+—H
2017 2016
—Z—+tF —E-REF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Kt F#EiT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE T b % 1 th{FE FARE 12 26,508 27,296
Property, plant and equipment M -~ MR A 13 179,280 203,006
Investment properties BREYE 14 218,504 211,449
Film rights, films in progress and film EEME BEPEER
royalty deposits EXIRERS 15 148,268 136,647
Interests in associates REE N R 2= 16 12,944 4,663
Interests in joint ventures REeEEbEoER 17(a) 2,188 —
Available-for-sale financial assets R HENKERE 20(a) 6,712 8,186
Other receivables and deposits HittEWFERIZE 22 4,757 5,661
599,161 596,908
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 238 116
Trade and other receivables g5 Rk H bW EE 22 29,464 28,872
Amounts due from associates JE W Bt & X R RIE 16 13,757 7,921
Amounts due from joint ventures EWE & hERE 17(a) 5,015 —
Financial assets at fair value through BN REFTABRERZH
profit or loss BEE 20(b) 46,011 42,254
Pledged bank deposits EIRAIRITER 19(b) 23,500 23,500
Short-term bank deposits EERITIERR 23 2,258 —
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERKREEE 23 123,585 228,592
243,828 331,255
Total assets waEE 842,989 928,163
EQUITY Ha
Equity attributable to owners of the FXTFHEAEERS
Company
Share capital [N 24 118,475 118,475
Share premium R EE 24 407,428 407,428
Reserves @& 26 155,673 233,366
Shareholders’ funds BERES 681,576 759,269
Non-controlling interests IR ER 6,046 651
Total equity HER 687,622 759,920
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LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Obligations under finance leases
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Receipts in advance
Borrowings
Obligations under finance leases
Current income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

fifR

FRBDRR
BE
BMEHNEE
EEFRSHAE

mENR R
B5 REMENRIR
FEWRIR
BE
BMEMENEE
ERmEHREE

#AaR

HERRAR

The notes on page 61 to 197 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the

Board of Directors on 29th June 2017 and were signed on its

behalf.

Director
EZE
Li Kuo Hsing
FEHE

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (=i iR 44 & S &£ B B R 2 |

Note
Kt

28(a)
28(b)
29

27

28(a)
28(b)

As at 31st March

®R=B=+—H
2017 2016
—=—+t5F —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
7,789 8,675
312 75
22,822 22,498
30,923 31,248
77,568 102,625
34,005 21,635
1,441 1,337
236 175
11,194 11,223
124,444 136,995
155,367 168,243
842,989 928,163

BOIE17HZMERSTGEMBRERZE

RERRD o

REMBBRENR-Z-—tEA=-tNBE
ExeitE XREEE-

Director

EE

Tong Hing Chi

EE®



Balance at 1t April 2015
Comprehensive loss
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Surplus on revaluation of buildings
(note 13(a))
Deferred taxation arising from
revaluation surplus of buildings
(note 29)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets - net
(note 20(a))
Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets
Release of available-for-sale financial
assets revaluation reserve upon
disposal
Currency translation differences
- Group
- Associates (note 16)

Total other comprehensive incomel(loss)

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

Issue of shares

Share option scheme:

— Share options granted and vested

— Issue of shares upon exercise of share
options

— Share options forfeited

Dividend relating to 2015

Capital injection from non-controling
interests

Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity

Balance at 31st March 2016

“2-1FMR-AYER

2EEH
EREE
Kh2ENE/ (BR)
EE{EH
(Wi 135)
BTEERYEE
ZERRE
W)
TihEnKEE,

MENE - 78

(o0
THHENKEERE
3
HETfLE
HREEREN
1
ERAEER
- 550
- BEDNAE 16)

Eh2AbE/ (58128

2EhE/(Ef)eH

Lkt

ERiEtE:

- CRLREE BRE

- BREEGRE
ikt

- RlcERE

“E-RERERE

AERRREE

AHEACEREE
EgRuER

RZE-7F
ZR=t-BekR

Attributable to owners of the Company

DATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAEREDE

KOAEENEL

Available-

for-sale

Share- financial

based assets Retained
Share payment Buildings  revaluation ~ eamings/
redemption reserve revaluation reserve  (accumulated Non-

Share Share reserve WhH  Contibuted  Exchange resene  AEEE losses) controlling Total
captal  pemum  RAEE  AEHZ supls  dfference  BFEG  HEKEE  REBA/  interests equity
R&  RfteE fE AHEE  AABR ENEE B  ERRE (ZFR)  #ERER 1
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$O000
723 723 7 7 Tén FEn 7 77 7 7 7
112,661 126,733 12 8482 189,009 2,102 70,180 4702 15,128 5932 534941
- - - - - - - - (66,188) (4,561) (70,749)
- - - - - - 1,59 - - - 1,595
- - - - - - (&1 - - - (319)
- - - - - - - 11,821 - - 11,821
- - - - - - - 1,150 - - 1,150
- - - - - - - (10,554) - - (10,554)
- - - - - 2,301 - - - (369) 1932
- - - - - (45) - - - - (45)
- - - - - 2,256 1,284 247 - (369) 5,588
- - - - - 2,25 1,284 247 (66,188) (4,930) (65,161)
5,600 1,214 - - - - - - - - 216,874
- - - 6,124 - - - - - - 6,124
214 9421 - (2,142) - - - - - - 7493
- — - (286) - - - - 286 — -
- — - - - - - - - (360) (360)
- — - - - - - - - 9 9
5814 280,695 - 3,696 - - - - 286 (351) 290,140
118,475 407428 1 12,178 189,009 4358 71464 7119 (60,774) 651 759920
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Attributable to owners of the Company

LG TN
Available-
for-sale
financial
Share-based assets
Share  payment Buildings  revaluation
redemption reserve revaluation reserve Acc- Non-
Share Share reserve WBB  Contributed  Exchange reserve AfHE  umulated  controlling Total
capital  premiom  RABE  BEMZ  sumpls  difference  HFEH  HEEE losses interests equity
ks  RhaR BF  ARER  GARR  EREE BR  EGER  AMER  FURES #ha
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Balance at 1st April 2016 RIZ-AEMA-AZRR 118415 40748 12 12178 189,009 4,358 1,464 My (0T 651 759,020
Comprehensive loss 2HER
Loss for the year EpEE - - - - - - - - (82,259) (3,208 (85467)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ £H2EKE/(EH)
Surplus on revaluation of buildings BTEREG
(e 13¢) (W13 - = = - - - 1,964 - - - 1,964
Deferred taxation arising from BTE(RREL
revaluation surplus of buikdings LEERA
(1ot ) Wi29) - - = - - - %) - - - 1%0)
Fair value gaing on avallable-forsale  TRHERKEE
financil assets - net DhEdE - 78
(note 20(3) (Wz209) - - - - - - - (1474) - - (1474
Curency translation differences ERAEEE
— Group - 558 - - - - - 4,701 - - - 735 5,43
— Associates (nofe 16) - BENAW 1) - - - - - 1) = = = = 1)
- Release of exchange reservewpon ~ — HEKBATEEH
dlisposa of subsiaries EXff
(ote 340) W) = - - - - (o) - - - - (244
Total other comprehensive incomef(oss) Bt 2EUE / (58)4% - - - - - 4,456 1,584 (1474 - 735 5,301
Total comprehensive incomef(loss) ~ 2TKE /()i - - - - - 4,456 1,584 (1474 (62,259 (2473 (80,166)
Share options forfeited BRUzERE - - - (317) - - - - 37 - -
Derecogniton of non-controlling inerests  ENBARERILER
upon disposals of subsidiaries (note 34)  EERRER(HE ) - - - - - - - - - 7,968 7,968
Total transactions with owners, BREACRREE
recognised directly in equity ERIEERY - - - (317 - - - - il 7,868 7,868
Balance at 31st March 2017 NZB-tf
ZBZt-BkR o475 407408 g 1808 8% M8 BE6 (e 606 eenen

The notes on page 61 to 197 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
MEREMER

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operations
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Purchase of film rights, films in
progress and film royalty deposits

Incorporation of an associate

Proceeds from disposal of interests
in associates

Proceeds from capital reduction of an
associate

Incorporation of a joint venture

Acquisition of a joint venture

Cash outflows arising from disposals
of subsidiaries

Purchase of available-for-sale
financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of available-
for-sale financial assets

Purchases of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Change in short-term deposits

Proceeds from a government grant

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

BEXBZRARE

EEMARE
2 PrSH

REEBAREFHE

RREDZESRE

BEYX  HERRE

HEMSE ~ WERKREZ
PR 5E
BEEYME BRTE
TREZRERE

— & N R AL
HERBE AR 2 EHZ
PR 5RE

R E—BEBE A R EDRR
K2 RS FRIE
—BeEhEIMARL
BE-Eeghx
HEMBAREEZRE
ik

BEAHUENKEE

HETHREENBEEZ
FrSRRIA
BEZAAESABER
ZHBEE
HERAREFARRER
2B EEZFERIA

BEHEREH
RE BT EBY 2 FRERE
[EL€ =N

REGHFTAREER

Note
Kt

30(a)

16
16
16
17

17

34

23

Year ended 31st March
#EZE=A=1T—HLEE

2017 2016
—=E—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
(54,416) (246)
(63) (543)
(54,479) (789)
(1,501) (992)

- 73
(48,788) (36,428)
(5) (483)
8,808 —

- 388

(4) =
(5,500) —
(595) —

- (1,200)

- 10,984

- (19,268)

383 3,032
(2,258) —

- 365

1,012 953
(48,448) (42,576)
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AEHETMER

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank loans
Repayments of bank loans
Interest paid on loans
Repayments of capital element of

finance leases
Interest paid on of finance leases
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary
shares
Proceeds for exercise of share option
Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year
Exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of year

Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

The notes on page 61 to 197 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= =5 #%

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended 31st March
#EZE=A=1T—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—REF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Ktz FHET FET
MEFHZHRERE
IRITERZ SRR 30(b) - 7,000
EEBRITER 30(b) (1,367) (32,327)
ERERAE 8 (225) (535)
EERERANZEARDH
30(b) (202) (169)
RMERIZENSFIE 8 (9) (11)
BTEBRZABIIE
- 276,874
TEBREZEHE - 7,493
EH#E&%ﬁZ%E
- (360)
BMETE(FTA) RS
T (1,803) 257,965
BeREARSHFA (D)
g bk (104,730) 214,600
FUzHeRERREER
228,592 14,737
EHERE (277) (745)
FERZFSREABRELER
123,585 228,592
BeRESRARLFEHA RS
A
RekZERBELER 23 123,585 228,592

BEP -

SENEEBRAA

EOIE197BEZHMFANRGEU B RER2E



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in television operations, film exhibition, film
rights licensing and sub-licensing, theatre operations,
concert performance, mobile games applications and
video online, artiste management, sales and distribution
of films and programs in audio visual product format, and

property investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved

for issue by the Board of Directors on 29th June 2017.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

R IR R MR

—iE#
XURELENEEERIFA(TAQT )
REMBAR(RBE A5EH ) EE2H/SE
ERER  EXHR - EXMERER
B ThER BB FHRESE
RRAREREE BEAEE  UEF
EmPAEERBRTEZREEURY
RERE -

AATARBRETMRIZBERA
A HEEMM#EEEE 2 ik & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM

11, Bermuda °

KARARBEBHERZMAERLA L

m e

BRIES AR BRIRGREPBEHRA
B2 - BEEERN -2 -tF XA
TR BRETBEAGSHBEHRE -

EEEMBRBE

RARAGSMBEBRREEA 2 EESH
HERERTX - FRIEZHHA - TR
ERREMZIIZHBEFERNEME
o
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B B ‘7
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of buildings, investment properties, available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair

value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in

note 4.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 4% 45 51 &£ B B bR 2 &

2 EEgNBRREER)

21 WEEE

FEBEZGEVBRRIVERE SR
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures

(a)

New standards and amendments to
standards adopted by the Group

The following amendments to standards
and annual improvements are mandatory
for the first time for the financial year

beginning 1st April 2016:

° Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 28, “Investments
entities: Applying the consolidation

exception”

° Amendments to HKFRS 11,
“Accounting for acquisitions of

interests in joint operations”

o HKFRS 14, “Regulatory deferral

accounts”

° Amendments to HKAS 1, “The

disclosure initiative”

o Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS
38, “Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and

amortisation”

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

2 EEgNBRREER)

21 REE¥EE
21.1EHBFSHRIBE

(a)

FREFHZHETER
RERIEET

LU ZEANE RT & S EE R
EEER-ZE—AFDO
A—HRBZMBRFE
BREEIRA

e TRUMBEREE
Bl 1055 - B8
B mELERE
12 REBES
ERIE 285 218
RI[REERE: &

R&EE AR Z &
RER

e TRUMBEREE
BISE 1158 218 5T
[WiB S & KR
w2 EEHE]

s EEBMBHEE
B SB1455 & &

IEIERRF

o EBEFERIZE

SBR[ R Es
£

e BBEMENZR
165 R BBES
R 385F 218
Rl EB R
WERBHELE]
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B B ‘7
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBREE@®
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEE)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and 21.1 B3 BFSHRIBE (1E)
disclosures (Continued)

(a) New standards and amendments (a) ZFHEFEZHTEL

64

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= =5 #%

to standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)
° Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS

41, “Agriculture: Bearer plants”

° Amendment to HKAS 27, “Equity
method in separate financial

statements”

o Annual improvements to HKFRSs —
2012-2014 cycle

The Group has adopted these standards
and the adoption of these standards
did not have a significant impact on the

Group’s results and financial position.

There are no other new standards or
amendments to standards that are
effective for the first time for the financial
year beginning on or after 1st April 2016
that are expected to have a material

impact on the Group.

SENEEBRAA

RERIEET (B)

e HBEBEFERE
165 REBGE
EHEMNFE2B
RITR¥E £EM
184 |

. EHEEaE
27 15 51198
BB ERR R
2% ]

e ABUBMEE
BlFEMEEE
- ZE-C°FE%
—Z—-NF A

AEECERAZEE
B MR AER 2
EERMBRRLES
REE -

WEEMN T —RF
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HHAEEBEARE
Z ¥ 7] % Bl = % AlME
T o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

,ﬂ?m,jﬁ%#&%EMjﬁf

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREE@
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 B RFEBERIEE (&)

(Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to (b) EHAEMERFENA
standards that have been issued but F*EEALBTEERFZ
not yet effective and have not been FTATER R EREET
early adopted by the Group
The following new standards and LT R E B AR 23
amendments to standards relevant to the AT EAIRZAMERTE 18
Group have been issued but are not yet i EEARRZE—N
effective for the financial year beginning FNA— BBz
1st April 2016 and have not been early FEEY  TRERER
adopted: A

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

or after
RLLT sz &b
ZEEMMEN
HKFRS 9 ,”Financial Instruments” 1st January 2018
BRI EERE N BETA] —ZE-N\§¥—HF—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, “Sale or contribution of Note
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture”
BEMBREEAE 10K R EBSTTHERIZE 28 55 87T Mzt
Hxﬁ%iﬁﬁ%‘”*“j:ﬁA**/JE%ZFﬁZﬁEtHEj,Eﬁ_]
HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” 1st January 2018
BRMIEREEUNE15HFEREHNNE ] —E2—N\F—H—H
HKFRS 16, “Leases” 1st January 2019
BBMISREERE 1655 HE | —ZE-NF-HF—H
Amendments to HKFRS 2, “Classification and measurement of 1st January 2018
Share-based Payment Transactions”
BB ELERSE 2 5% Z185T —ZE2-N\F-HF—H
[P AEEZ RS ﬁﬁ&%’réj
Amendments to HKAS 12, “Income taxes” 1st January 2017
BBGTHERE 1258 25T %] —Z2—tF—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 7, “Statement of cash flows” 1st January 2017
BERETTERE TR 2B ReRER] —Z2—tHF—-HF—H
Note: To be announced by HKICPA Bzt - BB AS QM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to
standards that have been issued but
not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)
The directors of the Company are in
the process of assessing the financial
impact of the adoption of the above new
standards and amendments to standards.
The directors of the Company will adopt
the new standards and amendments to

standards when they become effective.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from

the date that control ceases.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 5 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &
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(b) EFMIERKXEN
HFxEBMEEREEFAH
ZHETERI R ERIEET
(&
RRRESFRIEFEAE
BAER A L a3 T 2 Al R
HAMERT 2B E -
RRBESHRZEHR
] ZE B I ZE BMERT 4 2
Bk o

22 MHELT

22.1%8KE

MEBAREASEHAES
EHE-EE(BEEBLE
) EXAKERZHER

EEMESHAEREZRAA
WEOE - BEEHEREY
ZERZEIFE LB R
B AEENHZEEES
B - BN B
EREAEEEHRGESA
fR WRIESIELIE AR
FILARE AR ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
nm jﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%f

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREE@
policies (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

2.2 MELATRGE)
221585 (&)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. It means
the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and a
jointly controlled entity are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

i E /& 2 A
EXEETLTBHEEEGE
R RNZERZEAREE
mRERKREEGEER
ZARBEEHTE > MEKE
THREBINBRRARE
R BMEBARIMERE D
A fELEIUBEEZ
REERMS  2ARERTD
RARE SR o A LRI
ZEREREMEZEKE AR
RZEMLE  SRBUOAK
EECEERHERBEER
BEZAFAAR - EERE
ST AT H Ath 2 T I 2 A TR R
CEREHFIBERERY
&ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%&%ﬁ
RE/NAHAERES —HER
hl e

222BUMBHE

RMBLE - BEQIARH
REHBER 2 RECTEAR
RRE S IR » RATBER
BEERERAS - HEA
AZRBECHAQNFEDINK
REWRESIER -

RZEREWMREE - W
BREBBHEQAREIKRK
EHAZEZHWEARE R
ZERENBYMHERERR
ZEAEHEBBMRENT
FEE(BEBEIRNGAY
BHRERZREEE - RIRHK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREE@
policies (Continued)
2.3 Associates 2.3 BiELTE

68

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss
of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 5 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBREE@®
policies (Continued)

2.3 Associates (Continued) 2.3 BiELAF(E

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount in the

consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

FEEREREAHNEERERE
EEEERARBELT Z2RE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4 Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as

either joint operations or joint ventures depending

on the contractual rights and obligations each

investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its

joint arrangements and determined them to be joint

ventures and joint operations.

(a)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3 &F %% %4 & &

Joint ventures

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. The Group’s
investments in joint ventures include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
When the Group’s share of losses in a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interests in the
joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
group’s net investment in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4 Joint arrangements (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Joint operations

Joint operations arise where the investors have
rights to the assets and obligations for the
liabilities of an arrangement. A joint operator
accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities.
Investments in joint operations are accounted
for such that each joint operator recognises its
assets (including its share of any assets jointly
held),

liabilities incurred jointly), its revenue (including

its liabilities (including its share of any

its share of revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation) and its expenses
(including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the
assets and liabilities, as well as revenues and
expenses, relating to its interest in the joint
operation in accordance with the applicable

standards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.5 Segment reporting

2.6

Operating segments are reported in a manner

consistent with the internal reporting provided

to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief

operating decision-maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance

of the operating segments, has been identified as

the Executive Directors of the Group that makes

strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HKS,
which is the Company’s functional and the

Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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2 BEESHRREE®

2.5

2.6

SEEE
RENHzE2RFAEOETREE
RRERBECABREEM—H -
ITREERREREIMERKF
HEED B XE  YCERERE
HRBERECAKEHTES °

SriEm

(a) ZDHEERZFIRW
rEEESEEE M BHRE
WAZIEB PR EREE
FMEEZEEEREZEY
((HhEEEE NFTE - REY
BHRRUBTLEY > BR
KRB ZhEEERAER
ZEFNEE -

(b) XHRIEE
IERZHRARS B (FHE
#MeEEE - AIBM/ER)Z
ERERRERINEER -
RELEXZREE ZHE
BERUFRERBE L
WIRCEREEREER
EEZHERBNGES WG



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available-for-sale are included in

other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions);

and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)
(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised

in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associated company that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREE@
policies (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.6 HHWE(E)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal (Continued)
In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associated companies or jointly
controlled entities that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is

reclassified to profit or loss.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly offices. Buildings are
recorded at fair value, based on periodic, but at
least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated

to the revalued amount of the asset.

Freehold land is not depreciated. All other property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREE@
policies (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.7 Y% BBRREHEE)

76

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are credited to other
comprehensive income. However, the increase
shall be recognised in the consolidated income
statement to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Decreases
that offset previous increases of the same asset are
charged against other comprehensive income; all
other decreases are charged to the consolidated

income statement.

Construction in progress refers to the leasehold
improvements where the construction works have
not been completed, and is carried at cost which
includes development and construction expenditure
incurred, and other direct costs attributable to the
construction works, less provision for impairment
losses. When the construction work has been
completed, the expenditure is transferred to
leasehold improvements. No depreciation is

provided on construction in progress.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings Over the remaining term of
the lease, or 50 years,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold Over the lease term, or 7-10

improvements years, whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures 15% to 25%

and equipment

Motor vehicles 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in buildings revaluation reserve

are transferred to retained earnings.
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e MR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and

that is not occupied by the Group.

Investment property is initially measured at cost,

including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If the information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in

the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets

acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating

segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less
costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently

reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.10 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits

(a)

(b)

Film rights

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. The cost
of film rights is mainly apportioned between
the film exhibition and local or oversea
licensing. In the case of the former, the cost
is expensed on first public exhibition, and in
the latter, the cost is expensed at a systematic
basis with reference to the underlying license
periods, which are subject to annual review by

Executive Directors.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Costs include
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. Provisions are made for costs which
are in excess of the expected future revenues
generated by these films. The balance of
film production costs not yet due at the end
of each reporting period are disclosed as
commitments. Costs of films are transferred to

film rights upon completion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.10 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits (Continued)

(c)

Film royalty deposits

Licence fees paid in advance and by
installments under licensing agreements
for distribution of audio visual products
and sub-licensing of film titles, in specified
geographical areas and time periods, are
accounted for as film royalty deposits. Film
royalty deposits are recognised when payment
was made and the balance payable under
the licensing agreements is disclosed as a
commitment. Upon receipt of the audio visual
products and the materials, the deposits would
be transferred to film rights and the remaining
payable balances will be recorded as a liability.
Provision for impairment loss is made against
deposits to the extent that film rights will not
be received and the deposit is not recoverable
in the future.

In case where the Group is unable to exercise
its rights under a licensing agreement because
the film producer fails to complete the film, the
Group writes off the difference between the
advances made and the estimated recoverable

amount from the film producer.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal

and external market information are considered

to assess whether there is any indication that film

rights, films in progress and film royalty deposits

are impaired. If any such indication exists, the

carrying amount of such assets is assessed and

where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised

to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.

Such impairment losses are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HESHREEE®)
policies (Continued)
2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.11 FMBREZRIE

82

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation or depreciation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.12 Financial assets

2.12.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)
2.12.1 Classification (Continued)

@

(b)

()

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term.
Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for
the amounts that are settled or expected
to be settled more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade and other receivables”, “amounts
due from associates”, “pledged bank
deposits”, “short-term bank deposits”
and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
consolidated balance sheet (notes 2.16
and 2.17).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are
non-derivatives that are either designated
in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

2.12.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are presented
in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the Group’s right to

receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)
2.122 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the consolidated income

statement.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Dividends on available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in the consolidated income statement when
the Group’s right to receive payments is

established.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the

company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that

can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that

correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREE@
policies (Continued)
2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 214 MBBEZRE(EF

M HRETIEZ B E (F)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued) (a)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair

value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in

the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Assets carried as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria refer to
in (a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the consolidated income
statement, the impairment loss is reversed

through the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current

assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of

three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net

of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19

2.20

2.21

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises

current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in

the consolidated income statement, except to

the extent that it relates to items recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

In this case, the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

(a)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company, its
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entity operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected

to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &F #% £

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised

or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, associates and a jointly
controlled entity, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the

balances on a net basis.

2.23 Employee benefits

(a)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered

by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the

time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREE@
policies (Continued)
2.23 Employee benefits (Continued) 2.23 EEEH (&

(b) Pension obligations (b) BHELEHF

94

Group companies operate various pension
schemes.

The group companies in Hong Kong
participate in a mandatory provident fund
scheme and another defined contribution
plan. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

The Group companies in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised
by relevant government authorities for its
employees in the PRC and contribute to these
plans based on certain percentage of the
salaries of the employees on a monthly basis,
up to a maximum fixed monetary amount,
as stipulated by the relevant government
authorities. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations payable to all existing and future
retired employees under these plans. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.24 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options

granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share

price);

° excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified

time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save or holding shares

for a specified period of time).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.24 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding

adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company
issues new shares. The proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (and share

premium).

Share-based payment transactions among
Group entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to

equity in the parent entity accounts.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.25 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating

losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised

as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured

reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.25

2.26

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3 &F %% %4 & &

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will

then be recognised as a provision.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net
of discounts and returns. The Group recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group bases
its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@) Revenues from television operations mainly
comprise channel supply revenues, which are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
contract periods which generally coincide with

when the relevant channels are broadcasted.

(b) Film exhibition income is recognised when the
film is shown and the right to receive payment

is established.
() Income from the licensing and sub-licensing

of film rights is recognised in accordance with

the terms of the underlying contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d)

Revenues from theatre operations mainly
comprise income from box office takings,
which is recognised when the services are

rendered to the buyers.

Revenues from concerts performance is
recognised when the performances are

rendered.

Revenue from launching the mobile games
application is from the purchase of games
credits through third party platform’s own
charging system and use the game credits
to exchange in-game virtual items. The
proceeds from the sales of virtual items are
initially recorded in deferred revenue and are
recognised as revenue subsequently only

when the services have been rendered.

Revenue from the provision of artiste
management services is recognised when the

services are rendered.

Revenue from the sales and distribution of
films and programs in audio visual product
format is recognised on the transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered to customers and the title has

passed.

Rental income from investment properties
is recognised in the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

0

Management fee income is recognised when

the services are rendered.

Dividend income is recognised when the right

to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate
of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest

rate.

2.27 Leases

(a)

The Group as the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the

lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.27 Leases (Continued)

(a)

The Group as the lessee (Continued)

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum

lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the consolidated income
statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset

and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.27

2.28

2.29

Leases (Continued)

(b) The Group as the lessor
A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor
conveys to the lessee in return for a payment,
or series of payments, the right to use an
asset for an agreed period of time.

When assets are leased out under an operating
lease, the asset is included in the consolidated
balance sheet based on the nature of the
asset.

Lease income on operating leases is
recognised over the term of the lease on a

straight-line basis.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will

comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to

compensate.

Government grants relating to non-current assets
are deducted from the carrying value of the related
asset. The grant is recognised in a profit or loss
over the life of a depreciable asset.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Executive
Directors of the Group. The Executive Directors
identify and evaluate financial risks in close co-

operation with the operating units of the Group.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong
Kong, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) and the Republic of China
(“Taiwan”) and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi (“RMB”) and New
Taiwan dollar (“NTD”). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in a currency
that is not the functional currency of
the individual group companies and net

investments in foreign operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group has certain investments in
foreign operations whose net assets are
exposed to foreign currency translation
risk arising primarily with respect to RMB
and NTD. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations is managed primarily through
sourcing suppliers denominated in the
same foreign currencies. Management
considers the foreign currency exposure
with respect to RMB and NTD is not
significant as the functional currency of
the respective foreign operations are also
RMB and NTD respectively.

At 31st March 2017, if HK$ had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax loss for the year
would have been HK$1,121,000 (2016:
HK$1,231,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of payables denominated
in either HK$ or RMB that is not the
functional currency of the individual
group companies.

The Group minimised its other foreign
exchange risk by denominating majority
of its foreign currency transactions in
United States dollar (“USD”), which is
pegged with HK$ at a designated range
such that the exposure on fluctuation of

foreign currency rate is limited.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because of the investments
held by the Group and classified in the
consolidated balance sheet either as
available-for-sale financial assets or
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group is not exposed
to commodity price risk. To manage its
price risk arising from investments in
equity securities, the investment portfolio
is continuously reviewed, carefully
monitored, and diversified in accordance
with the limits set by the Executive

Directors of the Group.

Majority of the Group’s equity securities
are publicly traded. At 31st March
2017, if the share prices of the equity
securities of the Group had increased/
decreased by 5%, the pre-tax loss for
the year would have been HK$2,301,000
(2016: HK$2,113,000) lower/higher and
the equity of the Group would have been
HK$2,636,000 (2016: HK$2,520,000)

higher/lower, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has cash balances placed
with reputable banks and financial
institutions and other receivables
advanced to third parties, which generate
interest income for the Group. The Group
manages its interest rate risk by placing
cash balances in these institutions and
advances to these third parties with

various maturities and interest rate terms.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash and other
receivables held at variable rates. Details
of the Group’s borrowings and other
receivables have been disclosed in note

28(a) and note 22 respectively.

At 31st March 2017, if the interest rate
had been 50 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax loss for the year would have been
HK$705,000 (2016: HK$1,233,000) lower/
higher.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit
risk arises from cash and cash equivalents
and pledged bank deposits as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions, and
other debtors. The Group only places deposits
in reputable banks and financial institutions
and manages its credit risk associated with
trade receivables through the application of
credit approvals, credit ratings and monitoring
procedures. Advances to other debtors will
only be made to those with appropriate credit

histories.

Credit sales are only made to customers
with appropriate credit history or high credit
standing while sales to new customers or
customers of low credit standing are usually
made on cash on delivery basis. Provision for
impairment of receivables will be made in light

of existing evidence of uncollectibility.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability
of funds to meet all contractual financial
commitments as they fall due. The Group’s
objectives are to maintain a prudent financial
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against
risk limits and to maintain a contingency
plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity

requirement.
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3 HMERKRER#)

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMBRABRERGE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REIELEEE(E)

108

The Group meets its day to day working
capital requirements, capital expenditure and
financial obligations through cash inflow from
operating activities and the facilities obtained
from banks. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, management maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining availability

under committed credit lines.

The directors closely monitor the Group’s
liquidity position and financial performance
to ensure it has sufficient cash flow to meet
the operational need. These measures include
raising additional capital; extending existing
loan facilities; obtaining additional financing
from banks; and realising certain financial
assets held by the Group through disposal, if
considered necessary. At 31st March 2017,
the Group held cash and cash equivalents
of HK$123,585,000 (2016: HK$228,592,000),
short-term bank deposits of HK$2,258,000
(2016: nil), financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$46,011,000 (2016:
HK$42,254,000) and other current assets of
HK$48,474,000 (2016: HK$36,909,000) that are
expected to readily generate cash inflows for
managing liquidity risk. The Group is expected
to be able to generate sufficient cash flows to
cover its operating costs and meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the
coming twelve months from the date of these

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 HMERKRER#)

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMBRABRERGE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REIELEEE(E)
The table below analyses the Group’s non- TRETRBRHALERZS

derivative financial liabilities into relevant

maturity groupings based on the remaining

period at the balance sheet date to the

contractual maturity date. The amounts

disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

WEPHEzRSRBEE D 2
BRI HAR - AEEZFE
TTEBMBEREDN - RAK
B2eBERAANRTRZR

TRE °

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years
—FR —EmF MELF AFENE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Group F&%E
At 31st March 2017 RZ-Z—tf=H=+—H
Trade and other B 5 Kk HMENFIE
payables 68,350 - - -
Obligations under MERNEE
finance leases 236 182 130 -
Borrowings BE 1,471 1,501 4,893 1,860
At 31st March 2016 RZ-E—XRE=A=+—H
Trade and other B REMEMNIE
payables 94,004 — - -
Obligations under MEBRNEE
finance leases 181 75 - -
Borrowings BE 1,365 1,381 4,499 3,350
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or convertible notes and derivative

financial instruments, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided

by shareholders’ funds.
The Group’s strategy was to maintain the gearing

ratio below 20%. The gearing ratios at 31st March

2017 and 2016 were as follows:

Bank loans (note 28(a))

(note 28(b))

Total borrowings BEHBE
Shareholders’ funds REREE
Gearing ratio BEEELE
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Obligations under finance leases rERNE B (AL 280b))

B B ‘7
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

3 HMERKRER#)
32 HEEE
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

3 HMERKRER#)

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AR {EMHE
The table below analyses financial instruments TRUGELTEINIRAAETE
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The ZHMBEITHE - FEIZER2ESN
different levels have been defined as follows: T :
. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets o EEEEREEREETRT S
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1). FoRECRKEARE) (B —
&) o
e Inputs other than quoted prices included o HE(HER)RBE#E(BER
within level 1 that are observable for the asset PTE)FEAE —RPHREUIN
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or ZABREESEEEE (%
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). —#) o
e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not e [FMIERABEMEHE
based on observable market data (that is, ZEESEEEE (T T#H
unobservable inputs) (level 3). REE) (E=R)
The following table presents the Group’s financial THREIR=-BE—LER=-F—X
assets that are measured at fair value at 31st March F=A=+—HEAARBFEZAX
2017 and 2016. SEUBEE -
Level 1
E—#®
2017 2016
—2—t%F —E-RE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Assets =E
Financial assets at fair value through &2 R {EFT ABHER
profit or loss 2K EE
— Trading securities (note 20(b)) — RS REEF (M 20(0b)) 46,011 42,254
Available-for-sale financial assets AEENKEE
— Equity securities (note 20(a)) — RS (B17E 20(a)) 6,712 8,186
Total assets HRE 52,723 50,440
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 MERBRER 2
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 LR{EMEE)

112

The Group does not have any financial assets/
liabilities that are subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangement and similar agreements

during the year.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily
equity investments listed in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern
Ireland (“UK”) classified as trading securities or

available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale financial assets that are not
quoted in an active market are measured at cost

less impairment.

The carrying values less provisions for impairment
of trade and other receivables, amounts due from
associated companies and joint ventures, cash
and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits,
pledged bank deposits, trade and other payables,
borrowings and obligations under finance leases
approximate their fair values due to their short

maturities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

addressed below:

(@) Impairment of film rights, films in progress and
film royalty deposits
As set out in note 2.10, impairment assessments
on film rights, films in progress and film royalty
deposits are performed at the end of each reporting
period with reference to both internal and external
market information, for example, sales forecast
based on expected popularity of the respective
titles, the expected production, sales and
distribution costs budget and the general economic
condition of the relevant markets. As at 31st March
2017, the carrying value of film rights, films in
progress, and film royalty deposits amounted to
HK$148,268,000 (2016: HK$136,647,000). Changes
in assumptions used in this assessment, including
the forecasted revenue, may result in additional
provision being made in the consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

4 Critical accounting estimates and

judgements (Continued)

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
As set out in note 2.11, the Group tests property,
plant and equipment for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations or fair value less
costs to sell. These calculations require the use of

judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of

asset impairment particularly in assessing:

(i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not

be recoverable;

(i)  whether the carrying value of asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being
the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use

of the asset in the business; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

(iiiy the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test and as a result
affect the Group’s financial condition and
results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance
and the resulting future cash flow projections,
it may be necessary to take an impairment
charge or further impairment charge to the

consolidated financial statement.

Valuation of investment properties and buildings
The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar leases and other
contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair values estimated. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information
from the valuations of investment properties and
buildings performed by external professional valuers
by using the open market value approach. Had the
Group used different valuation techniques, the fair
value of the investment properties and buildings
would be different and thus may have an impact to

the consolidated financial statements.

(b)

(c)
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5 Revenue and segment information

Revenue
Licensing income
Sales of services

Sales of goods

Other income

Rental income from investment properties

(note 14)
Management fee income
Dividend income
Others

The chief operating decision maker has been identified
as the Executive Directors of the Group. The Executive
Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in

order to assess performance, allocate resources and

5 H@RSBEH

ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
ks
MRFEW A 83,595 101,125
SHERTS 13,998 22,026
HEBE M 2,498 3,628
100,091 126,779
Hag A
REYEHRES WA
(Ftat 14) 10,651 9,378
BEEBRA 245 245
BREWA 1,651 1,066
Hit 4,159 2,973
16,706 13,662
116,797 140,441

make strategic decisions. The Executive Directors R ER o

have determined the operating segments based on the

Group’s internal reporting.

116 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S BB R 2 A
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Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

For the year ended 31st March 2017, the Group operates
in eight business segments:

—  Television operations

—  Film exhibition and film rights licensing and sub-

licensing
—  Theatre operations
—  Concert performance
— Mobile games applications and video online
— Artiste management

— Sales and distribution of films and programs in

audio visual product format

—  Property investment

ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

&k oEEE 7

REBE=ZE—tHE=A=+—HLHF
B AEEEE ) EEEDE6 :

- BREH

— BEHBREEES LRSS

- ERE®

— :Eug%

2R

~

— FHERERAEARESREE

— BAEHE

- MUETERPAHEERBITETR
|

- MERE
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5 Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31st March

2017 by each principal activity is as follows:

Segment revenue

Reportable segment profit/{loss)

Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilties

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and amortisation of
leasehold land and land use rights

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Fair value gain on revaluation of investment
properties

Amortisation of film rights

Provision for impairment of film rights and
films in progress

Share of losses of
— Associate
— Joint venture

Additions to property, plant and equipment

Additions to film rights, films in progress
and film royalty deposits

Interest in and amount due from an
associate

Interest in and amount due from a joint
venture

pEL

TERAFHE/(BR)

T2RBEE

PEEVEE

% BERREZAENR
BELHRIHEREL
B3

% BRRRERE

EX3 EUEPANNEL

SrhERE
EYRERRRTEYAE
i
EBiATHI%2ER
- Bend
-RERE
FENR HRRRR
EEYNR RATEY
Bt
R-BREATZBERER
-EReATNE
- é%ﬁ#zﬁﬁ&%w
o

5 KWERSEBEE w)

NSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REXTEZHE I ZBE-Z—LtF=
A=+t—HALEESHERWMT :
Year ended 31st March 2017
BECR-tESA=+-ALER
Sales and
Film distribution
exhibition of films and
and film Mobile programs
rights games in audio
licensing applications visual product
and sub- and video format
licensing onling N¥EER
Television E¥in Theatre Concert FEn Artiste VilE Property
operations ~ REWAE  operations  performance BRES  management  REFEY  investment Group
ERRE  RERER FRRH HEE  RERRA N 3] REE WRRE 31
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note (b)
()
40,301 202 2420 11,200 2791 - 151 - 100,091
(12,804) (64,039) (20,828 395 (5,961) (131) (1,843) 12,208 (93,513)
49,781 118,498 5,706 11,283 20,967 5136 31,312 200,642 465,325
(34,445) (60,648) (14,181) (7,382) (315) - (3,126) (24,972) (145,069)
(342 (473) (7,001) (24 (503) - (265) - (8,608)
- - (14,058) - - - - - (14,058)
- - - - - - - 8,130 8,130
(16,084) (16,003) - - - - - - (82,477)
- (18,278) - - - - - - (18,278)
- - - - 6967) - - - (6987)
- - - - (197) - - - (197)
507 - 825 - 3 - 3 202 2,306
14,149 51315 - - - - - - 05,464
- - - - 12,692 - - - 12,692
- - - - 7,203 - - - 7,203
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk TR

5 Revenue and segment information 5 RERSHBEH=)
(Continued)
The segment information for the year ended 31st March REFEFHEDZBE-_ZT—RE=
2016 by each principal activity is as follows: B=1+—HLEFESTERWMT :

Year ended 31st March 2016
BECE-AESA=T-ALEE

Sales and
distribution
Film of fims and
exhibition programs
and film Mobile in audio
rights games visual
licensing applications product
and sub- and video format
lcensing onlne WERER
Televison ~ E¥H®  Theae  Concet  FHEA Atste  FAKE  Propery
operains~ REZRE  operaions  perfomance  ERER  management  RETEY  investment  Elmination Group

ERER RERER  ®REB Ee RASRA EAER RER MR 5 A58
HKSOOD  HKSUDD  HKSOMD  HKSOMD  HKSO0  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSDOD  HKSODD  HKSUD
fé&r  fEr  TEr  fEr  FEr TEn fEr FEr TEn T

(note (b))
W)
Segment revenue Aiha 53,997 16,173 35,336 19,088 1,805 1133 17 = = 126,779
Reporebe segmet proftoss) T25AHR/(BE) B0 @ G5 B (769 % g G N )
Reportable segment assets T2RHEE 46374 125,779 31,061 10,585 4667 1311 26,320 215,864 (147) 461,814
Reportale seqment s 1289988 0% (6 (5 60 (168 e %) - (109
Depreciaton of property, plant and g BERREITE
equipment and amortsation of WRBETHRLH
Ieasehold fand and land use rights [EREZEY (103) (616) (8.960) - (350 - (263 - - (10492)
Fair value losses on revaluation of EfiRENEL
investment properties DAEFE - - - - - - - (10.441) - (10,441)
Amortisaton of fim rights B iERy (14,296) (8.336) - - - - - - 15 (28
Provision for impairment of fim rights and ~ E/AERERAELHE
films in progress & - (17,904 - - - - - - - (17,904
Reversal off(provison for) impaiment o~ BZEMZERERE/
trade receivables (&) - 12,156 - - - [ - - - 12,154
Additions to property, plant and equipment  FEHE  BERHE 84 - 18 4 2 - 8 31 - 992
Additions to fim rights, fims in progress ~~ FEEYME  BLHEE
and fim royalty deposts REZfRERS 9514 70,110 - - - - - - - 79,624
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5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

(a)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Performance is measured based on segment profit/
(loss) that is used by the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance. Income tax
expense is not allocated to reportable segments.
Information provided to the Executive Directors of
the Group is measured in a manner consistent with

that of the consolidated financial statements.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of
the Group are allocated based on the operations of

the segments.

Reportable segment profit/(loss) is profit/(loss)
before income tax, excluding unallocated share of
profits of associates, other income, other gains/
(losses) — net, finance costs — net, depreciation
of property, plant and equipment, amortisation of
leasehold land and land use rights and share-based
payment expense that are used by all segments and
other corporate expenses (mainly including staff
costs and other general administrative expenses) of

the head office.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 4% 45 51 &£ B B bR 2 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 KWERSEBEE w)

()

2R W2 EFBERELEEZ
SIBEMERE - RRDERTEE
BARARERARD BERRTEDH
REZ DR (BE)TE - FF
BHAXTEIMEATZ2HDE -
BAREHTESRHNER KA
HEEMBER -2 AAFE -

rEBzWGE B EERERE
DEREDM2EEDE °

A2H 5 BAE(FR) BBRTE
BiATRE(ER) FTEERS
B R E N R - A
HitWz, (BHR) — 38 BE
BA — FE--FEISBERZY
¥oMERRE2NE  HELH
RtifEREZBERURDH/E
BzNAFAX  URERSEE2H
XA (FEBEEIRAELR
Hitb—RATHBA) °



5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

()

(Continued)

Reportable segment assets exclude unallocated
interests in and amounts due from associates,
available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash
equivalents and other corporate assets (mainly
including property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land and land use rights that are used by

all segments).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude unallocated
bank borrowings and other corporate liabilities
(mainly including accrued charges of the head

office).

The revenue of HK$10,896,000 (2016: HK$9,623,000)
attributable to the segment “property investment”

has been included in other income.

Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or

loss, assets and liabilities.

R IR R MR

5 KWERSEBEE w)

(@)

(b)

()

(4&)

2/ HEENBIEARD EH B
ENA AR BWEE QXFR
B AEHENBEEE - BANE
FFABBERCUBEE  RERE
BREHEBUREMEREE(E
EREMBDEER 2 - HaR
RREUAREEL R L ER
&) °

=]

A2/BDHBEETEERDERIT
BERHMEXEE(ZTERER
MBEZETER) -

[MERE | DBEML 2K
10,896,000 jT(= & — X F .
9,623,000 5) B 5T AE AU A o

2RO MBS - BERAEZY

® ol
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IOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
() (Continued) (c)

5 KWERSEBEE w)

(#)
Reportable segment profit or loss, assets and

2RO MER BERBBEER
%IF?F)’T SHEEE  REERR

liabilities are reconciled to loss before income tax

122

and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as EEHRNT :
follows:
Profit or loss "a 2017 2016
—2—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Reportable segment loss A2HDIBEAE (93,513) (51,413)
Unallocated amounts: RABMKIE :
Unallocated other income RO BLEMKA 2,121 1,471
Unallocated other gains/ ROEEMUE
(losses) — net (F518) — 358 11,911 (4,945)
Unallocated finance costs — net ROFRERA — FE (234) (546)
Unallocated depreciation of property, ROFEYE - HESREE
plant and equipment and amortisation @ ZITEURBEE LR
of leasehold land and land use rights =+ i 5 A 2 i 8K (6,026) (6,248)
Unallocated share of profits of R FEEGHEE QT
associates — net AME — FEE 6,038 2,485
Share-based payment expense DRt B B 2 TR B X - (6,124)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEERL (5,368) (5,182)
Loss before income tax per FEWEETH ZBRTEH
consolidated income statement RIES 18 (85,071) (70,502)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3= &F §2 4%
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Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
(c) (Continued)

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Unallocated assets:

Unallocated property, plant and
equipment and leasehold land and
land use rights

Unallocated available-for-sale financial
assets

Unallocated financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Unallocated cash and
cash equivalents

Unallocated interests in and amounts
due from associates

Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets per consolidated

balance sheet

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities:
Unallocated bank borrowings

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities per consolidated

balance sheet

()
wE

AEHRDMBEE
APBMEE :
ROBEHIE - HEBERRIE
REE LRt
£
AOBAHHE
MBEE
ROBBRAAEFTA
BRRzZMBEE
AOBRER
ZREEEAR
RO BRBEE AR 2R
ST E NS
ROMEEEE

RREEREBERMIIZ
mEE

ffE

TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

5 KWERSEBEE w)

(#)
2017 2016
—®—t®E —F-AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
465,325 461,814
198,019 201,462
6,712 8,186
46,011 42,254
108,774 195,264
14,009 12,584
4,139 6,599
842,989 928,163
2017 2016
—E—t® —F-AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
145,069 156,106
9,230 10,012
1,068 2,125
155,367 168,243
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5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

The Group is principally domiciled in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Taiwan. The result of its revenue from
external customers and non-current assets other
than financial instruments located in Hong Kong

and other countries are summarised below:

Hong Kong BE
PRC Fh
Taiwan =)
Other countries HAbE =R

During the year ended 31st March 2017,
revenues of approximately HK$19,109,000 (2016:
HK$20,369,000) was derived from one single
external customer attributable to the television

operations.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (=i iR 44 & S &£ B B R 2 |

ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&k oEEE 7

(c) (#&
FEBMEEUER FEIRAEIE
Bt EURAEBREMER
ZBEF R ERIFREEE (B
BIAERM 2EEBBMT :

Revenue from

external customers

SHEBER G
2017 2016
—2—t%F —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT FHET
35,099 52,496
34,184 39,390
9,345 11,609
21,463 23,284
100,091 126,779

RBZE-_Z—+tF=A=+—H
IEFE > ##19,109,000 #E T
(ZZ— 7<% 20,369,000 #&t)
DRERBRERERIBZ—F
B—INBEF o



Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
(c) (Continued)

Hong Kong
PRC

Taiwan

Other countries

Other gains/(losses) - net

Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation of
investment properties (note 14)

Fair value gains/(losses)
on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Gains on disposal of subsidiaries — net
(note 34)

Gain on disposal of an associate
(note 16(c))

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets (note 20(a))

()

&8
]

0=

HiE =

TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

5 KWERSEBEE w)

(4&)

Non-current assets
(other than financial assets)

FREBEE

(MBAEERS)
2017 2016
—2—t#F —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx TAET
365,892 347,420
170,437 183,157
25,274 24,512
26,089 27,972
587,692 583,061

6 HfulkR (BiR) — $@E

BEHRENEZARE
Wz (E18) (Bfat 14)

BRARBEFABRERZ
M EECARE
Wz (E1E)

HENB ARz W=
— SFE (K 34)

HE—BEE ARz la
(Ktzz 16(c))

HETHEEMKEEZ
hE=

AHHENKEERERE
(K&t 20(a)

2017 2016
—E=—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
8,130 (10,441)
4,140 (14,349)
11,638 —
7,771 —

- 10,554

- (1,150)

31,679 (15,386)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

-

7 Expenses by nature 7 BREHISZHAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling, distribution STAHERAS - HE  BITRTHHE
and marketing expenses, and administrative expenses B U RITHAS 2RO :

are analysed as follows:

2017 2016
—=—+tf —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Cost of inventories (note 21) FERAKN(KaF21) 1,113 1,386
Reversal of obsolescence of inventories REFEEE
(note 21) (KtaE21) (77) (88)
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use &+ & +ibFERAE>
rights (note 12) BeE (fat 12) 788 788
Depreciation (note 13) e (HaF13)
— Owned property, plant and equipment — BEWHE - HERRE 13,625 15,791
— Leased property, plant and equipment — THEWE - BEERFBE 221 161
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ¥ - #28 &k RERE
(note 13) (BtaE13) 14,058 —
Amortisation of film rights (note 15) B M (Mt 15) 32,177 22,617
Provision for impairment of film rights B MR ERE
(note 15) (KtaE 15) 18,278 17,904
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables & 5 B IERERD
(note 22) (Kiat22) - (12,154)
Reversal of provision for amount due from e — R = A RFRIEZ
an associate BERmE - (6,897)
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETEN &
— Audit services — ZEBRTS 1,600 1,603
— Non-audit services — FAERE 80 7
Direct operating expenses arising from EXHEsWAZ
investment properties that generate rental REWHEZ
income (note 14) BEKLEM (T 14) 1,776 1,763
Employee benefit expenses (including EEEFEX
directors’ emoluments) (note 11) (BEESME) (Mt 11) 49,471 54,767
Exchange losses E R EiE 9,336 7,683
Marketing and promotion expenses TSHERSERX 19,544 9,629
Operating lease rental in respect of BEZE&LEEIES
buildings (note 33(a)) (K15t 33(a) 7,387 7,607
Production, playout and origination costs BUE - BRRIEERA 17,052 12,918
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Finance income - net

Finance income
— Interest income on short-term bank
deposits
— Interest income on loans to

third parties

Finance costs
— Interest on loans

— Interest element of finance leases

Finance income — net

NSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

8 MBWA — B

REHBBA
— EHRTERZ
B WA
—ME=ZFERZ
B WA

MEEE
— BRzZAE
— MERY 2T SR H

RBBA — BH

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F T FET
759 600

555 466
1,314 1,066
(225) (535)

(9) (11)

(234) (546)
1,080 520
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9 Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable

profit for the year. Taiwan corporate income tax has
been provided at the rate of 17% (2016: 17%) on the

estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on

other countries’ profits has been calculated on the

estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of

taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates.

Current income tax
— Hong Kong profits tax
— Taiwan corporate income tax

— Under-provision in prior years

Total current tax

Deferred income tax (note 29)

Income tax expense

RSB
— BEREH

— BELRHEH
— BEFERHETR
ENRRAS

AL A8 LA 2 29)

RS

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (=i iR 44 & S &£ B B R 2 |

ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FRi3 B3
EBFERRBERGETERBFEN
FEA16.5% (= —"F : 16.5%) 5112
BE - ABLCEMSBIRFAMTER
BABAUBEAT% (2B —RF 1 17%)
FHREE c HERA B 2R AIRRBE
R FTERB B AR EB LS EBHT
EERZBRITHENE -

2017 2016
=t 2o e
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFAEIT FET

- 131

165 49

- 39

165 219

231 28

396 247




10

Income tax expense (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

Hong Kong taxation rate, as follows:

Loss before income tax

Tax calculated at a rate of 16.5% (2016:
16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in other
countries

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax
assets were recognised

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses

Associates’ results reported net of tax

Under-provision in prior years

Tax charge

Loss per share

(a) Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing
the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$82,259,000 (2016: HK$66,188,000) by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,923,739,000 (2016: 5,832,017,000) in issue during

the year.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

9 FrfeMBEAX &)

REEZBRAEHAEE 2 BRRERSE
RRAEEBEMAE 2ERBBEZEE

mF :
2017 2016
—Z—+tf —E—RFE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FET
FFrRRAIEsR (85,071) (70,502)
BBER16.5% (ZF—R"F :
16.5%) 5T & 2 Bi1E (14,037) (11,633)
HitFRTREHE2HE
(5,187) (1,404)
BERBUA (6,889) (3,690)
AN X 4,983 5,124
WERERELEMEHEEZ
HIEEE 21,748 12,587
BRBAERERZHIESE
(224) (366)
P2 g e N R EE
(IBR%IE) 2 (410)
BEIFEREBETR - 39
REMAX 396 247
10 BEREGIR

(a) E=X

BREAFERADTEERA
FE 16 /&5 18.82,259,0005%& T (= &
— 7N & : 66,188,00078 T ) K LA
FREBTEBRMEFLETH
5,923,739,000 R (= & — < F :

5,832,017,000 J& )5t & o
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10 Loss per share (Continued)

11

(b) Diluted

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 SRR @)

(b)

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31st
March 2016 and 2017 are the same as the basic

loss per share as the potential additional ordinary

shares are anti-dilutive.

Employee benefit expenses

Wages and salaries
Pension costs — defined contribution plans

Share-based payment expense

(@) Five highest paid individuals

11 {E

TER¥HE

BAEHA — RERKETE

LUR M BER 2 A RBAX

(a)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the

highest in the Group for the year include three

(2016: three) directors whose emoluments are

reflected in the analysis presented above. The

emoluments paid or payable to the remaining

two (2016: two) individuals during the year are as

follows:

Basic salaries, allowances and other
benefits in kind

Pension costs — defined contribution
plans

Share-based payment expense

EXFE  RERAEMEY

ks
BARSAA — REHK
stal

LR RER 2 SFRAX

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 4% 45 51 &£ B B bR 2 &

o E
HREEREEBERAERBEN
B HEBEEZE-RFRZZT—t
FZRA=T-RLFEZSREE
EiBEEREREIBAER -

BERFIRAXZ
2017 2016
—2—+tF —E-RE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FiEx
45,663 44,839
3,808 3,804
- 6,124
49,471 54,767
ISEEFHFMAL

FR - AEELUKRSHFMAL
o =ZH(ZR-RF I =R)RE
B REZHMEEREXENZ2D
FRER - FRENHENTFHER
B(ZE-RF  MBA)RSHHMA
TZMEWT :

2017 2016
—e—tE —E-AF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHT
3,055 2,972

18 18

- 419

3,073 3,409




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
Both of the individuals’ emoluments fell within the
band of HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000.

During the years ended 31st March 2017 and 2016,
no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
three (2016: three) directors or the two (2016: two)
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss

of office.

Emolument policy

The Group’s emoluments (including the directors’
emoluments) are determined by the Board of
Directors with reference to their contributions in
terms of time, effort and their expertise and are

reviewed on an annual basis.

Pension schemes arrangement

The Group provides a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for its staff in Hong
Kong under the requirement of the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
(“MPF Scheme Ordinance”). Under the MPF
scheme, the Group’s contributions are calculated at
5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined
in the MPF Scheme Ordinance up to a maximum of
HK$1,250 (from June 2012 to May 2014)/HK$1,500
(from June 2014) per employee per month. The
employees also contribute a corresponding amount
to the MPF Scheme if their relevant income is more
than HK$7,100 per month. All benefits derived from
the mandatory contribution must be preserved
until the employee reaches the retirement age of
65 subject to certain exceptions. The assets of the
MPF scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds. The
total contribution to the MPF Scheme paid by the
Group during the year amounted to HK$576,000
(2016: HK$504,000).

11 &
(a)

(b)

(c)
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A E TS Ak TR

11 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(c)

Pension schemes arrangement (Continueqd)

The Group also contributes to a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) which
provides retirement benefits to its employees who
joined the Group prior to the adoption of the MPF
Scheme and chose not to join the MPF Scheme
after its adoption. The Retirement Scheme’s
assets are held in a provident fund (the “Fund”)
managed by an independent administrator. Under
the Retirement Scheme, both the employer and the
employees are required to contribute 5% of the
basic salary of the employees (up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per employee) on a monthly basis. The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
contribution after 10 years of completed service,
or at a reduced scale of between 20% and 90%
after completion of 2 to 9 years’ service, in which
case the forfeited contributions are to be used to
reduce the employer’s contributions. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay the related employee benefits. The
aggregate employer’s contributions, net of forfeited
contributions, which have been dealt with in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31st March 2017 amounted to HK$86,000 (2016:
HK$86,000).

At 31st March 2017, there is no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future
contributions under the Retirement Scheme
and contributions totalling HK$44,000 (2016:
HK$117,000) and HK$12,000 (2016: HK$26,000)
payable to the MPF Scheme and the Retirement
Scheme respectively were included in the

consolidated balance sheet.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 5 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

11 &
(c)

BiRFIRAXZ @)

B ertBIREE
AEETERERTBARTE(R
REHEI D E R BRIRSTEIBR
BES T EIRMATMEAREE AR
BB R MBI FBEMA R
Bert ez EERMHERKER - B
KB EERNBBLERAEE
Z2ABe(E2NEE - RER
i8> BEREEHNESAZE
EEXRFE5%EHER(ESH
BEE1,5008 ) - BERTK
10FREEERZEREMEL
Z100% > ARTH2EIF
R#&E#% > RERLEHZEE20%Z
WREEMR - EHBERT 2
BTG AR EE 2 MK -
HMEEIBISERAEEXNEE
BERF » AIREEFEEERHE
EEEXME-—SHR - EREBE
TE—tHF=ZA=+—HLEFEEZ
GANBERAEE B MREHE
(H0BRE R WAt 5K ) % 86,0008 7T
(== —7<% : 86,0008 L) °

R-ZZE—+tH=A=+—-8B" %
B 7] AR D IR 15 R R EH Bl 2 R R
HRAZERZBMHR  MEORES
FFEIR BT EMEL 2R D 5l
& #£44,000 8B T(=ZZ — R F:
117,000 7t ) % 12,000 JT(=
L — X 26,0008 L) E 2 BlIE
ANREBEEBBXR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/_ﬁ = Jﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬁfﬁi

12 Leasehold land and land use rights 12 HE LR it 4E A
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAEiT FET
At 1st April 2016 and 2015 R-B—R"ER-Z—HFWMNA—H 27,296 28,084
Amortisation of leasehold land and land FH& & #th % + it {5 FA#E = i £
use rights (note 7) (Btaz7) (788) (788)
At 31st March 2017 and 2016 REE—LERZZE—XRF
=B=+—H 26,508 27,296
13 Property, plant and equipment 13 Y% - BB RS
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
Freehold land Buildings  improvements HR RE vehicles Total
KARHELH B  HRMERE RifE RE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEn T FiEn FET T
At 1st April 2015 R=2-5EMA-A
Valuation & - 157,855 - - - 157,855
Cost o 16,056 - 56,684 58,117 5,705 136,562
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z3tTE - - (26,406) (44,317) (5,026) (75,749)
Net book amount BE3H 16,056 157,855 30,278 13,800 679 218,668

Year ended 31st March HECE-NE

2016 ZR=t-RLEE

Opening net book amount EYRETE 16,056 157,855 30,278 13,800 679 218,668
Additions AE - - 637 355 - 992
Depreciation charge (note 7) ~ FEER(##7) = (4,762) (5,415) (5,516) (259) (15,952)
Revaluation surplus (note (3)  EfEESA(H32(3)) - 1,595 - - - 1,595
Disposals HE - - = (73) = (73)
Exchange differences ERzE (473) (164) (1,114) (470) () (2,224)
Closing net book amount FREERE 15,583 154,524 24,386 8,096 a7 203,006
At 31st March 2016 R-S-RE=R=1-H

Valuation fhfE - 154,524 - - - 154,524
Cost A 15,583 - 55,613 57,143 5,675 134,014
Accumulated depreciation  Z3HTE - - (31,227) (49,047) (5,258) (85,532)
Net book amount EEH 15,583 154,524 24,386 8,096 a7 203,006
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e MR MR

13 Y% - BRREE =)

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

134

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
Freehold land Buildings  improvements KA RE vehicles Total
KARELH BF  HENERE Rt AE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA7 FA7 FAT TAT FA7 FA7
Year ended 31st March BECT-tE
2017 ZAZT-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 15,583 154,524 24,386 8,096 a7 203,006
Additions wE = - 514 688 1,104 2,306
Depreciation charge (note 7)  EER(Mit7) - (4,818) (5,139) (3,612) (283) (13,846)
Revaluation surplus (note (a) ~ EftEE (M () - 1,964 - - - 1,964
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAF - - 87) (226) - (319)
Impaiment charge (note 7 HEBR(HE7
and note () Rl () - - (11,651) (2,407) - (14,058)
Exchange differences EXER 1,010 336 (818) (322) 15 221
Closing net book amount FRETRE 16,593 152,006 7,211 2,217 1,253 179,280
At 31st March 2017 AZE—-tE=R=+-A
Valuation 4 - 152,006 - - - 152,006
Cost A 16,593 - 53,984 55,912 6,758 133,247
Accumulated depreciation ~ B3tiiE
and impairment RiEE - - (46,773) (53,695) (5,508) (105,973)
Net book amount BE$H 16,593 152,006 7,211 2,217 1,253 179,280
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13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(@)

The buildings were last revaluated on 31st March
2017 by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer, on a
depreciated replacement cost basis, which is the
aggregate of the land value in its existing use
and the estimated current replacement costs
of the buildings less deductions for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence
and optimisation. The revaluation surplus net of
applicable deferred income taxes was credited
to buildings revaluation reserve through other

comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31st March 2017, revaluation
surplus of HK$1,964,000 (2016: HK$1,595,000) has

been credited to the other comprehensive income.

<~

HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

13 Y% - BRREE =)

(@)

BUEXSERMGEMEMERG
BiITERARRNEEENAEE
BOHR=—ZE—tF=A=+—H
EMZEET2EE  IRERE
Rzt EEEMGTRERTE
ERAZBRERERBERAEN
A zREREBLKTE - HIER
EREEFREH 2 EGBHRIIEB
Htp2EWETABTEMRE -

REBZE=Z—t&=A=1+—H
IHFE - BEGZER1,964,000% T
(ZZ—73%F 11,595,000/ T) 2
FTARMEEmRES -
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13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 13 W% - BBREMWE =)

(@) (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy:

At 31st March 2017
Recurring fair value measurements
Properties held for own use:

— Located in Hong Kong

— Located in the PRC

— Located in Taiwan

At 31st March 2016
Recurring fair value measurements
Properties held for own use:

— Located in Hong Kong

— Located in the PRC

— Located in Taiwan

(@) (#&)
DNAERE
Fair value measurements using
QftENE DER
Significant other Significant
observable inputs unobservable

(Level 2) inputs (Level 3)

AUEXTRRNE  EXTURESSE Total
(B=#) ($=8) a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
RZE-t£=R=1+-H
EERNAETE
BEBANE
- UREH - 134,956 134,956
— {LRHE 11,600 - 11,600
- iRRE 5,450 - 5,450
17,050 134,956 152,006
RZE-XEZB=1+-H
mEEDNETE
BEBANE
- URES - 136,371 136,371
— fRPE 12,800 - 12,800
- iRRE 5,353 - 5,353
18,153 136,371 154,524
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13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(@)

e SRR MR

13 Y% - BRREE =)

(Continued) (@ (%)

Fair value measurements using HEREXAFHENE 2017 2016
significant unobservable inputs ZORERE —E=—tHF —E-RE
(Level 3) (=) HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Properties held for own use: BHEE R

At 1st April 2016 and 2015 R-ZB—RER

—E-HFMA—H 136,371 138,365

Depreciation charge EEH (4,364) (4,290)

Revaluation surplus BEhE 2,949 2,296

At 31st March 2017 and 2016 R=ZZB—tHFR

—E-—R"F=A=+—H 134,956 136,371

The finance department reviews the valuations
performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited for
financial reporting purpose. These valuation results
are then reported to the chief financial officer and
senior management for discussions in relation to
the valuation processes and the reasonableness of

valuation results.

For the properties held for own use located in the
PRC and Taiwan, the valuation was determined
using the basis of open market value. For
properties held for own use located in Hong Kong,
the valuation was determined by adoption of
depreciated replacement cost basis due to the lack

of reliable market information.

The key unobservable inputs in the valuation
method of depreciated replacement cost are
construction unit cost of approximately HK$11,000/
sg. m (2016: same) and depreciation rate of 2.25%
(2016: same). These assumptions are estimated by
the valuer based on the risk profile of the property
being valued. The higher the construction unit cost,
the higher the fair value. The higher the depreciation

rate, the lower the fair value.

B 75 2 B B L A DT B R A F R
RS PR T T 2 44 - B E
ERAEBHNBERARSEEEAR
S8 URHEBRREEERZAE
PEEATH ©

RURTERSEZFEBRAYEM
T HENDEAMMEBEREEEE - L
REBZEEBAYENS  BRZA
SEemBER WEEDRFTEEER
TEBE o

TEEEAARGEEIZEATTEHEY
BREESVRAYNEFHK11,000%
T(ZZ—RF  HE)RITEX2.25%
ZE-RF MR o  HERBHME
B 42 48 14 1B ) 3 = [ B AR O A A 5T o
BEBVRAIEES AREMS FE
EHE  AAEMIE -
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AT
NOTE

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(b)

(d)

(€)

The Group’s buildings are stated at valuation and
other components of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost. The carrying amount of the
buildings would have been HK$85,505,000 (2016:
HK$88,255,000) had they been stated at historical

cost basis.

At 31st March 2017, the freehold land and
certain buildings with aggregate carrying value
of HK$22,043,000 (2016: HK$20,936,000) were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 28(a)).

The Group leases motor vehicles under non-
cancellable finance lease arrangement. The lease
term is 3 years, ownership of the asset lies within
the Group. At 31st March 2017, the carrying amount
of the motor vehicles held under finance leases was
HK$868,000 (2016: HK$377,000).

Depreciation expense of HK$13,846,000
(2016: HK$15,952,000) has been included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated

income statement (note 7).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 4% 45 51 &£ B B bR 2 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(f)

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable
amounts of each cash-generating unit (“CGU”),

which is determined in an individual company basis.

For the year ended 31st March 2017, in view that
one of the CGUs which is located in Shanghai is
performing below management’s expectation and
has been making operating losses, the directors
have reviewed the recoverability of the relevant

carrying amount of this loss-making CGU.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on the fair value less costs of disposal or
value in use of calculation, whichever is higher.
Fair value less costs of disposal is measured by
referencing to the market values of property, plant
and equipment with similar type and condition as
compared to those of the Group and adjusted the
market values to reflect the type and condition
of property, plant and equipment held by the
Group. Value in use is measured by using income
approach, which was calculated based on present
value of future cash flows directly generated by the
CGU.

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use
calculation for the year ended 31st March 2017
are revenue growth rate of 4% and discount rate
of 10%. The discount rates applied by the Group
are rates that reflect current market assessment
of the time value of money and the risk specific
to the CGU. Revenue growth rate is based on
past practices and expectations on market and

operational development.

Impairment charge recognised for the year ended
31 March 2017 amounted to HK$14,058,000 (2016:
nil) (note 7).

e SRR MR

13 Y% - BRREE =)

(f)
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14 Investment properties

At fair value
At 1st April 2016 and 2015

Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation

(note 6)

Exchange differences

At 31st March 2017 and 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

14 BEME
2017 2016
—E—+tf —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
BRORE
R=ZB-—A"ER=F-LF

mA—A 211,449 223,575
Bz nERE(BE)

(Hiite6) 8,130 (10,441)
[EREEE (1,075) (1,685)
REZB—tER-Z—RF

=A=+-—H 218,504 211,449

The following amounts have been recognised in the

consolidated income statement for investment properties:

Rental income (note 5)

Direct operating expenses arising from

investment properties that generate rental

income (note 7)

DT SBEERREVEMRGE NEE
AR

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEIT FiET

HEWA (KaE5) 10,651 9,378
ELEESWAZREYEZ

BHELERZ (fE7)
1,776 1,763

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment

properties was performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors

Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer

who held a recognised relevant professional qualification

to determine the fair value of the investment properties
as at 31st March 2017 and 2016. For all investment

properties, their current use equates to the highest and

best use. The following table analyses the investment

properties carried at fair value, by valuation method.
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E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk TR

14 Investment properties (Continued) 14 BEDE =)
The valuation gains or losses is included in “other gains/ FEKRSBEET AGalERRAZ
(losses) — net” in consolidated income statement (note Hib s (FE) — B2 (HzEe6) o &
6). The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and EBECHERARERNERB 2EHHBER
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date FLLEBRIADAERBER ZE AN
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the EHE AFERITEE—HR - TR
transfer. There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and FZHB 2B o

3 during the year.

(a) Fair value hierarchy (a) DRERE

Fair value measured at 31st March 2017 using
RIB—LE=A=+-RZLREHE  DER
Significant other Significant
observable inputs unobservable

(Level 2) inputs (Level 3)

EMEXTRRHE  EXTUARAE Total
(B=%) (8=#) by
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Recurring fair value measurements EEMARENE
Investment properties: REME
— Commercial units - located in - BREN - UNEA
Hong Kong 12,700 - 12,700
— Commercial units - located in the PRC ~ — B¥E{ — IRHE 62,100 - 62,100
— Industrial units - located in Hong Kong ~ — T¥Bf - UREHS 78,700 13,904 92,604
— Residential units - located in - ITEN - UREE
Hong Kong 47,500 - 47,500
— Residential units - located in the PRC - FEEN - URPE 3,600 - 3,600
204,600 13,904 218,504
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14 Investment properties (Continued)

(@) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

14 BEM¥E#)

(a)

DRERR(E)

ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair value measured at 31st March 2016 using
R=B-AEZA=t+-A2DAEIHE  HER

Significant other Significant
observable inputs  unobservable inputs
(Level 2) (Level §)
HEtEXTBREE  EXTOUHRYE Total
(B=8) (£=H) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A7 & T
Recurring fair value measurements EEMAREE
Investment properties: REME
— Commercial units - located in - BEEW - UNEA
Hong Kong 12,200 — 12,200
— Commercial units - located in the PRC ~ — F¥E(i — fiRHE 64,400 = 64,400
— Industrial units - located in Hong Kong ~ — ITXEfi - fiRESE 75,900 14,049 89,949
— Residential units - located in - fZEf - AREA
Hong Kong 42,000 - 42,000
— Residential units - located in the PRC - FEEN - URTE 2,900 - 2,900
197,400 14,049 211,449
Fair value measurements using HFREXAITHERHIEZ 2017 2016
significant unobservable inputs LREHE —E—+tF —E—RE
(Level 3) (BE=#) HK$’000 HK$’000
TFREIT FET
At 1st April 2016 and 2015 R-B-—RER=Z-HF
mA—H 14,049 14,255
Revaluation losses BAEE (145) (206)
At 31st March 2017 and 2016 R-B-—tFR-F-—XF
=ZA=+-—H 13,904 14,049
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 Investment properties (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The finance department reviews the valuations
performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited for
financial reporting purpose. These valuation results
are then reported to the chief financial officer and
senior management for discussions in relation to
the valuation processes and the reasonableness of

valuation results.

For commercial units located in Hong Kong and the
PRC, the valuation was determined using the basis
of open market value. For industrial units located
in Hong Kong, the valuation was determined by
adoption of depreciated replacement cost basis due

to the lack of reliable market information.

The key unobservable inputs in the valuation
method of depreciated replacement cost are
construction unit cost of approximately HK$11,000/
sg. m (2016: same) and depreciation rate of 2.25%
(2016: same). These assumptions are estimated by
the valuer based on the risk profile of the property
being valued. The higher the construction unit cost,
the higher the fair value. The higher the depreciation

rate, the lower the fair value.

At 31st March 2017, certain investment
properties with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$47,500,000 (2016: HK$56,049,000) were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 28(a)(i)).

R IR R MR

14 BEM¥E#)

(a)

(b)

DRERE (A

MR ENERERTHTERA
BB B E HEMET 2 EE -
ZEMEARARBOMBARR
SEEEABZ® U GEBRRE
REEER2SEMETW

BRUREBRDE2EEENM
5 MENEAHTEEEEE -
RUREBZITREMMS @ FHiR
ZASEZTRER  MEETRT
BEEERAEEE °

TEEERAMEBEEZERTITEH
RYBABEBNURANETFHK
11,0008 T(=Z —75F : #HE)
RITEE225% (ZF—7~F : 1
@) o tERR BB EMZREEE
I 2 B RAE 5T o RS
UAARS  AREHS - TER
HME o AREBRE -

R=ZZ2—tHE=A=+—8 " kH
#5854 47,500,000 T (= F— 7~
F : 56,049,000 ) 2E FTIRE
YIEB R IERREBFTERRT
RhiE 2 JE R (FTEE 28(a)(i) °
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15 Film rights, films in progress and film 15 BEFNE - BEHPEERESR
royalty deposits g e
Film
Films in royalty
Film rights progress deposits Total
EXNRE HBRIEY EERERS #agt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1st April 2015 R-E—hRFMABE—AH
Cost D% 923,309 7,377 26,039 956,725
Accumulated amortisation and &t R A
impairment (855,010) (2,771) — (857,781)
Net book amount RERE 68,299 4,606 26,039 98,944

Year ended 31st March 2016 HBE_Z—XF

ZB=t+—HLEE

Opening net book amount F Y BRTE F 5 68,299 4,606 26,039 98,944
Additions RE 17,006 56,868 5,750 79,624
Transfers B 5,120 (4,562) (558) —
Amortisation charge (note 7) BB (MW7) (22,617) - - (22,617)
Impairment charge (note 7) HEBREZ7) (17,904) - - (17,904)
Exchange differences fE =58 (521) (867) (12) (1,400)
Closing net book amount FRIRTEF 5 49,383 56,045 31,219 136,647
At 31st March 2016 A _E—NE=ZA=1+—H
Cost (5% 943,247 58,816 31,219 1,033,282
Accumulated amortisation and ~ ZEFt#sE R FE

impairment (893,864) (2,771) — (896,635)
Net book amount BRI EE 49,383 56,045 31,219 136,647

Year ended 31st March 2017 HBE_—Z—+t%

ZA=t+—HLEE

Opening net book amount FHEREFEE 49,383 56,045 31,219 136,647
Additions NE 10,500 32,718 22,246 65,464
Transfers R 37,065 (27,824) (9,241) —
Amortisation charge (note 7) BEBER (E7) (32,177) - — (32,177)
Impairment charge (note 7) HEBRMEZ7) (18,192) - (86) (18,278)
Exchange differences fE 5 =50 (1,346) (2,042) — (3,388)
Closing net book amount FRIEEPHE 45,233 58,897 44,138 148,268
At 31st March 2017 R-Z—tF=A=+—H
Cost B A 988,457 60,175 44,224 1,092,856
Accumulated amortisation and &t KR E

impairment (943,224 (1,278) (86)  (944,588)
Net book amount IRERHE 45,233 58,897 44,138 148,268
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nv'ﬁ (=P j%%#ﬁ%:?ﬁﬁ;I

Film rights, films in progress and film 15 BEFNE - BEHPEERESR

royalty deposits (Continued) WRiEEe =)

(@) Amortisation charge of HK$32,177,000 (2016: (a) BEEFRMEZ32,177,000/& T
HK$22,617,000) with respect to film rights has (== — /X% :22,617,00078 7t )
been included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated BHBEREF AGEaRAZ
income statement (note 7). [SHERA I(MIFET) ©

(b) The carrying amounts of film rights and film royalty b) EZRERESZRERESZERE
deposits have been reduced to their recoverable SHEEBREIABMESBERE
amounts through recognition of provision for 18,278,000 jt(= & — /X F :
impairment losses of HK$18,278,000 (2016: 17,904,000 7t ) M £ H AT Uk B &
HK$17,904,000) which has been included in “cost B OREBEREES T AR RE
of sales” in the consolidated income statement (note RAZ[HERAR J(HEET) ©
7).

Interest in associates 16 RBELTFIZHERS

2017 2016
—Z—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEIT FET
At 1st April 2016 and 2015 R=ZB—RER
“E-—HAFMNA—H 4,663 2,128

Incorporation of an associate SRR L A A 5 483

Capital reduction of associates B N RIRAER - (388)

Addition (note (b)) B (BEE (b)) 10,340 -

Disposal (note (c) and (d)) HE& (BtEE () & (d) (1,114) —

Exchange differences EHEZE (1) (45)

Share of (losses)/profits FEAE (B518) /RIS (949) 2,485

12,944 4,663

Amounts due from associates (hote (e)) FE Y B = N B SR IE (BT EE (e)) 37,945 32,109

Less: Provision for impairment of amounts  j&f - FEUREEE A B FUERE

due from associates s (24,188) (24,188)
13,757 7,921
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16 Interest in associates (Continued)

IR R

16 RBE

(@) Nature of investment in material associate as at
31st March 2017 and 2016.

Name of entity

RREReR

MAMO Games Limited
(“MAMO")

EnRERERAR
(275 1)

Hongkongmovie.com Company
Limited (‘HKM")

BEEYPRERAR
([EEEZA%))

Place of business/

country of

incorporation

ERuE/

EREIER

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&8

Percentage

of ownership

interest

EFRARER

B
2017
~2-t¥

49.5%
(note (b))
(Hizt b))

28.33%
(note (c))
(Hizz(c)

Percentage
of ownership
interest
ERAERR
;14

49%

HKM and MAMO are unlisted limited liability

companies in Hong Kong and there is no quoted

market price available for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the

Group’s interests in associates.

The Group has the following commitments relating

its associates:

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3= &F §2 4%

&,
=

SEARAF

ﬁjzmﬁ(ﬂﬁ
(@ RA=ZE—tEER=Z=

ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—AEZH

=t—H REXBELTIZRE

3

Nature of the relationship

LR

The associate develops or licenses the
mobile games application.

ZHENTREANTTREREREL -

The associate provides playout, post
production, HD-film restoration,
channel management and mobile
application development services to
the Group and outsiders.

ZHENAMARERMDA L RERE
B &R BEERBE  HE
EERFREREAHERE o

Measurement
method
HERE

Equity
Bak

Equity
Rt

BEYREREIDRYESEEBIE
EHERAE  HIRMIEETSIRE o

BEEAEEAEERBE A RERZ

HREE -

REEREEE

REABBEZERENT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 Interest in associates (Continued)

(@)

(b)

()

(Continued)

(i) Capital commitments

Licenses R AE

(ij) Operating lease commitments — as lessee
The future aggregate minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows:
Within 1 year —FR
Later than 1 year and no later —FUELERBEFER

than 5 years

With issuance of MAMO’s shares to an independent
external party in August 2016, the Group’s equity
interest in MAMO has been diluted from 55% to
49.5%, resulting in a loss in control over MAMO.
Accordingly, the investment in MAMO was
reclassified as investment in associates as at the
agreement date. Details set out in note 34(a).

The Group’s equity interest in HKM has been
decreased from 49% to 28.33% due to the disposal
of the partial interest in HKM to an independent
external party at a consideration of HK$8,700,000
and the share issuance from HKM in March 2017,
resulting in a gain on disposal of HK$7,771,000
(note 6).

nv'ﬁ (=P j%%#ﬁ%%BﬁLI

16 REELATFIZCERZ #®)

(@)

(%)
(i) EFxRE
2017 2016
—E=—tHF —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET
5,820 -
(i) HEEHFIRE—(ESRBA

REFTRESEROIMN
ZRRBEEESRENT :

2017 2016
—2—tF —E—XE
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
834 =

1,151 =
1,985 =

RZZ—RENBBE—BEILIID
ATBITEDRYEERMGE
AEBREZEENER2REDS
H55% B8 E49.5%  EF kL
H XD R IEEL 2 S HIRE o B
REzHEAH  RERRYERZ
RECEHIBARBE LT 2R
& o FIBHEHNMFE34(a) ©

R %12 8,700,00058 T [ — &
BIINMNTALTHEREEBESZA
Eo R URR=ZZ—tF
ZREEBSEFRBRBITRG &
SEREBESEREKXZREDH
49%5@9\528.33%  EEHEW
% 7,771,000 %8 T (FfIEE6) ©
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e MR MR

16 Interest in associates (Continued)

d —"HRABREZTRMEBERDAT—MHKXE D, an
associate of the Company was dissolved in August
2016 and the Group is entitled to a distribution
of a total amount of NTD721,000 (equivalent to
HK$185,000) after the liquidation. NTD299,000
(equivalent to HK$77,000) has not yet been settled
as at 31st March 2017.

Summarised financial information for material
associates

Set out below is the summarised financial information for
HKM and MAMO which is accounted for using the equity
method. The information below reflects the amounts
presented in the financial statements of the associates —
no difference in accounting policies between the Group

and the associates.

16

RERELAFCHRZ #)

d —BRABESEROGERAIT K
R ARARZHERAR)ER
—E-RENABE > MAEEE
RERERZWENAZEE 721,000 &
# (FAE 7 185,00058 ) 2 DK °
299,000 ¥ & M (18 & 1 77,000 &
T)R-E—tF=A=+—HH
REFHE -

EXBELAFCHMERERE

UTEIEBEERESRAERREDREY
BERARBEEARZVBERGE -
LTEMRRABE AR MBHRERMZ2
e efi—AEEEZEHENRZE
TBRLERE o

HKM MAMO

EHERAR ETEMES
2017 2016 2017 2016
—2-t& —Z-R"Ff ZB-t& C—E-R%
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FRET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE 7,490 6,282 2,161 =
Current assets MEEE 39,318 27,448 16,743 -
Non-current liabilities E =X (805) (595) - =
Current liabilities nEEE (13,772) (27,783) (12,131) =
Net assets EERE 32,231 5,352 6,773 -
Revenue e 40,022 23,099 7,939 —
Profit/(loss) for the year ERFE/(B8) 15,179 4,271 (14,116) =
Total comprehensive income ZHREAE 15,179 4,271 (14,116) =
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16 Interest in associates (Continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information of

the material associate presented to the carrying value of

the Group’s interest in associates.

R IR R MR

16 WERELTFIZRE &)
ISR EHEEZ MR
F2REAMEAR BB BER
AEERBLEAARS IEEESY
E-Eo

HKM MAMO Total
FEENAR RERMES it
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tf —E-RE —2-tf —E-RE —Z-tf —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE FET FET FET FE7
Opening net assets at 1st RZE-AER=ZF
April 2016 and 2015 —-EfMA-AZ
FNERRE 5,352 1,081 - - 5,352 1,081
Capital injection 1B 11,700 - - - 11,700 -
Net assets at the date of REHPERHZEE
reclassification FE - - 20,889 - 20,889 -
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ ERFE/(E) 15,179 4271 (14,116) - 1,063 4271
Closing net assets at RZE-tER-E
31st March 2017 and NS =
2016 LEREERE 32,231 5,352 6,773 - 39,004 5,352
Interest in associates NONCPL 9,131 2,622 3,353 - 12,484 2,622
Interests in other REMEE ATz ER
associates 460 2,041
Carrying value as at 31st RZF—-tER-ZF
March 2017 and 2016 -~E=A=1-H
ZEHE 12,944 4,663
() The amounts due from associates are denominated (e) B 9,300,0008 T(=Z & — N F:

in HK$, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand, except for an amount of HK$9,300,000

(2016: nil) which is interest bearing at 5% per

annum.

E)EFRNRSET B UL
ERNRRENBRIE REE
- RERREBREBEE -
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17 Interests in joint ventures and joint

operations

(@) Interest in joint ventures

At 1st April 2016 and 2015

Incorporation of a joint venture
Addition (nhote (ii))

Share of losses

Amounts due from joint ventures
(note (iii))
Less: Provision for impairment of
amounts due from joint

ventures

RIE-—RER-Z-—HEF
mA—H

MR EERE

NE (BTEE (i)

PR B

FE & & IR

(Bt (iii))

A BWEEREFRRERE

150 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =GR iR &4 S BB R 2 A
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17 REELRRSEREZHR

REBLEZESR
2017 2016
—=—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
4 _
2,981 =
(797) =
2,188 =
27,348 22,333
(22,333) (22,333)
5,015 =
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HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk TR

17 Interests in joint ventures and joint 17 REERLERSEXETCRES
operations (Continued) (&)
(a) Interest in joint ventures (Continued) (a) HREBLEZES(E)
()  Nature of investment in a material joint venture i)y R=ZEBE—ttHE=A=+-—
as at 31st March 2017. H  RERGELEZRE
=g
Place of business/ Percentage Percentage
country of of ownership  of ownership
incorporation interest interest Measurement
Name of entity EXME/ (GFEEES  (AFBHEES  Nature of the relationship method
REsR EMELIER L] ot REHE HERE
2017 2016

S8t CE-AE

THEM Co. Limited Hong Kong 55% — The joint venture operates online Equity
(formerly known & advertising platforms. Bk
as A% Tooogather DRELELERLIEETAR
Limited) (“THEM”)

THEM is an unlisted limited liability company THEMEEBFE LM BERD

in Hong Kong and there is no quoted market T ERMHIEHISERE -

price available for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities and material BEETMEEAEEREE
commitment relating to the Group’s interests TEERZIABBEREKX
in joint ventures. Y
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17 Interests in joint ventures and joint
operations (Continued)
(@) Interest in joint ventures (Continued)
(i) (Continued)

Summarised financial information for
material joint ventures
Set out below is the summarised financial
information for THEM which is accounted
for using the equity method. The information
below reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the joint venture — no
difference in accounting policies between the

Group and the joint venture.

Non-current assets FRBEE
Current assets REEE
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Current liabilities REAE

Net liabilities BEFHE
Revenue &

Loss for the year FREE
Total comprehensive loss 2HEBEE

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (=i iR 44 & S &£ B B R 2 |

SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 REELRRSEREZHR

(&)

(a) REeEdLRZEDZ(FE)

(i)

(#&)
EXGELEXCHMEBERSR
HE

LA 851 B B THEM £ A
BREARZVHERBE -
UTERMNEE S
BREMEINz2E K&
EEZEELEZESTHE
WA o

2017 2016
—2—t%F —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx TET

480 =
1,315 =
(8,980) =
(7,185) =

1,418 =
(1,450) =
(1,450) =




17 Interests in joint ventures and joint

(a)

(i)

R IR R MR

17 REELRRSEREZHR

operations (Continued) (&)
Interest in joint ventures (Continued) (a) REEBLEZRI(E)
(Continued) i (&)
Reconciliation of summarised financial HMBEHEIEZHIE
information
Reconciliation of the summarised financial FEJEREE CEZMK
information of the material joint ventures ERBEZEAEERGE D
presented to the carrying value of the Group’s FRERZIREBEZLE -
interest in joint ventures.
2017 2016
—=2—tF —E-—REF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEIT FET
Net liabilities as at the acquisition  AUE B~ & EF4E
date (5,735) =
Loss for the year FAEHE (1,450) —
Closing net liabilities at 31st March RZZE—+t&EK =T —RF
2017 and 2016 ZA=Zt+—B2ZF#
B8EFHE (7,185) —
Investment in THEM R THEM 2R & (3,952) =
Goodwill from acquisition (note ii) ~ WEBEE 2 & (A1atii) 5,713 -
Intangible asset from acquisition WBEEZEBFEE 423 -
Carrying value of THEM THEM Z BRE{E 2,184
Interests in other joint ventures REMEELEER 4 —
Carrying value as at 31st March R-E—tFR-FE—XRF
2017 and 2016 ZA=t+—-BZKHE 2,188 -
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17 Interests in joint ventures and joint
operations (Continued)

(@) Interest in joint ventures (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

In December 2016, the Group entered into
an acquisition agreement to acquire 55% of
the equity interest in THEM from an external
party at a consideration of HK$5,500,000.
The directors of the Company has completed
fair value assessment of identifiable assets of
the investment. Goodwill and intangible asset
totalling HK$5,713,000 and HK$423,000 was
recognised in the interests in joint ventures

respectively.

The amounts due from joint ventures are
denominated in HK$, unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (=i iR 44 & S &£ B B R 2 |

ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 REELRRSEREZHR

(&)

(a) REeEdLRZEDZ(FE)

(ii)

(iii)

R-ZBE-—RE+ZA K&
BT W E - [— &5
A W B THEM 2 55%
iz # - X {8 % 5,500,000 &
e RATREBLE T HZ
REZAHBNEERARET
& o 5 Bl & 5,713,000 7
TR 423,000 T EER
BREECREELEE
PR ©

FER S 4 1 3 30 B 52 51
B BEIER RERNE
RIGEE -



17 Interests in joint ventures and joint

operations (Continued)

(b)

Interests in joint operations

The Group has entered into certain joint operation

arrangements with certain independent third

parties to produce several films for exhibition
and distribution in Hong Kong and the PRC. The

Group has participating interests ranging from

20% to 80% in these joint operations. As at 31st

March 2017, the aggregate amounts of assets and

liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial

statements relating to the Group’s interests in these

joint operation arrangements are as follows:

Assets

Film rights, films in progress and
film royalty deposits

Trade receivable and other

receivables

Liabilities
Trade payable and other payables

Receipt in advance

Revenue

Expenses

Loss after income tax

"E
BYIRE  BRTEYR
BYRERS

8 2 B WGRIE R A A R R

fifR

82 BAFREREMENR

AW FRTE

W 3
53

BREFISHERE R

(b)

15

H

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

17 REELRRSEREZHR
(#)

REERBZRG

REEEETHIE=FILET
BEXBRE UREEZRSE
BRPERRE BT - NEBRZ
EEEEBEB20% E80% 22
Bfgsm - R=B—tF=ZA=+—
A BAKERZSEEEBTH
ZRENGEVBRRER Z2EE
HEEERAENT ¢

2017 2016
—=E—+tF —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FEx
71,976 92,107
1,334 987
73,310 93,094
(527) (586)
(5,647) —
(6,174) (586)
9,131 5,263
(37,510) (15,308)
(28,379) (10,045)
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18 Financial instruments by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have

been applied to the line items below:

Assets

At 31st March 2017

Available-for-sale financial assets

(note 20(a))

Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from associates

(note 16)

Amounts due from joint ventures

(note 17(a))

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (note 20(b))

Pledged bank deposits (note 19(b))

Short-term bank deposits (note 23)

Cash and cash equivalents (note 23)

RE

R-E—t§ZA=+-8
HREENBER
(Hf&t20(a))
g AR HMEKTE
FE Wi A R FOR
(17t 16)
ElEEtETE
(Kt 17(3)
BAREH ANBERZBH
EE(MZ201))
EERFRITER
(Hzt19(b))
EEBRITER(MZL23)
ReRERBRLER
(Hizt23)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (=i iR 44 & S &£ B B R 2 |

18 BRABSZMBEIR

ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MBETAZEFTRECEARTIE

18

Financial

Available- assets at

for-sale fair value

Loans and financial through
receivables assets profit or loss Total

BRORE

ERR A& HARER
FEU IR HEEE ZHBEE it
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET F#ET
- 6,712 - 6,712
28,621 - - 28,621
13,757 - - 13,757
5,015 - - 5,015
- - 46,011 46,011
23,500 - - 23,500
2,258 - - 2,258
123,585 - - 123,585
196,736 6,712 46,011 249,459




(Continued)

Assets

At 31st March 2016

Available-for-sale financial assets
(note 20(a))

Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from associates
(note 16)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 20(b))

Pledged bank deposits (note 19(b))

Cash and cash equivalents (note 23)

18 Financial instruments by category

RZE-"E=A=+-A
TRHENBEE

(Hzt20(a)
EoRHMEKFE
FEUREE & 1\ BT

(&t 16)
BARBHANBERZBH

EE(MZ20))
ERFRITER

(B 19(b))
ReRERRESER

(Hrzt23)

~

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

18 BERNEBISZMBEIR @)

Financial

Available- assets at

for-sale fair value

Loans and financial through
receivables assets  profit or loss Total

BARE

XK AfHE STABHER
MR HHEE ZHBERE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
- 8,186 - 8,186
33,481 - - 33,481
7,921 — - 7,921
— — 42,254 42,254
23,500 - - 23,500
228,592 — - 228,592
293,494 8,186 42,254 343,934
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18 Financial instruments by category 18 BERNEBISZMBEIR @)
(Continued)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
REMEF
SR
MBAR
HK$°000
FEIT
Liabilities AR
At 31st March 2017 ®-ZE—tF=A=+—H
Borrowings (note 28(a)) & (K1zF 28(a)) 9,230
Obligations under finance leases (note 28(b)) rEBNEE(HF28(b)) 548
Trade and other payables E 5 REMENRE 68,350
78,128
At 31st March 2016 R-B—R"F=ZA=1+—H
Borrowings (note 28(a)) B8 (Kt 28(a)) 10,012
Obligations under finance leases (note 28(b)) RIS RN BE (ML 28(b)) 250
Trade and other payables g 5 REMmENRE 94,004
104,266
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R IR R MR

19 Credit quality of financial assets 19 MEEEZEHER

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither
past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference
to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical

information about counterparty default rates:

(@) Trade receivables

Counterparties without external WIS B 2
credit rating
— Existing customers with no — BETEERLHE
defaults in the past REEF

(b) Pledged bank deposits

Credit rating (Standard & Poor’s) {E&FR(ELEEHE)
A-1 A-1

Hong Kong dollar-denominated balances as at 31st
March 2017 represent fixed term deposits placed in
commercial banks in Hong Kong that are pledged
against the banking facilities granted to the Group.
Please refer to note 28(a)(iii) for further details of the

arrangement.

At 31st March 2017, the weighted average effective
interest rate per annum of the Group’s pledged
bank deposits is 0.6% (2016: 0.6%).

MABBNREZHBEEZFEER
A2ENBEEFR(MB)RBEYE S
R R 2 BIEERBETIME -

(a) HHEUWHRE
2017 2016
—Z2—+tF —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
7,379 9,907

(b) EEFRITHER

2017 2016
—2—tF i
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT THET
23,500 23,500

R-ZE—tF=A=+—BUBRIE
RERIEEHNREBHERTZERE
& CHEBIEARSEMERRITHRE
ZER ZREZE—STHEFSHM
£F 28(a)(iii) °

RZZE—tE=A=1+—H0 XEEE
KRR ITERZINEL I ERERERES
06E(=ZZF—RFE :06E) -
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19 Credit quality of financial assets

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 MEBEZERER @

(Continued)
(c) Cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits (c) BeRFERTASRAREHFER
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F&IT FET
Credit rating (Standard & Poor’s) {EEFR(FEEXHE)
A-1 A-1 124,382 227,756
A-2 A-2 1,314 519
Cash on hand EEFRE 147 317
125,843 228,592
20 Financial assets 20 MHRE
(a) Available-for-sale financial assets (a) "HHEMBEE
2017 2016
—E—+tf —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
At 1st April 2016 and 2015 AN—E—RERZE—EF
MA—H 8,186 6,149
Addition NE - 1,200
Disposal HE - (10,984)
Fair value (losses)/gains transfer to ERZEFE A AE(FE),/
equity — net Wi — FEE (1,474) 11,821
At 31st March 2017 and 2016 REB—tFER=Z—RF
=BA=+—H 6,712 8,186
Available-for-sale financial assets  AI{EHERHKEERIETSI
include the following: £IE -
Equity securities listed in Hong BEELMRAES > EWmE
Kong, at market value 6,712 8,186

160 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 #R 44 &5 &




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 Financial assets (Continued)

nv'ﬁ (=P j%%#ﬁ%%BﬁLI

20 MESEE®)

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) (a) FIHHEMBEEEE)
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated A EMKEEELETIE -
in HK$.
During the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group BE-ZE-AF=A=1+—HLHF
made an impairment of HK$1,150,000 on available- B AXEEFHAUHEENKEE
for-sale financial assets. The amount was released {E {8 1,150,000 /& 7T © %7K 1E
from equity and recognised in “other gains/(losses) BREREE  WHGRERERZE
- net” in the consolidated income statement (note bl (F1E) — B R (KT
6). 6) o
(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or (b) BAREBEHABERZHMESE
loss
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Listed securities, at market value: M RME:
— Equity securities — Hong Kong — BRAFTE — FE 45,337 41,639
— Equity securities — UK — BRAES — ®E 674 615
46,011 42,254
At 31st March 2017, certain financial assets at R-ZE—tHF=A=+—H  KHA

fair value through profit or loss with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$26,987,000 (2016:
HK$22,977,000) were pledged as security for
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 28(a)

(iv)).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are presented within investing activities in the cash
flow statement.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are included in “other gains/
(losses) — net” in the consolidated income statement
(note 6).

The fair value of all equity securities is based on

their current bid prices in an active market.

#A%E 426,987,000 T (=ZF —
122,977,000 ) 2% TR
AREFFABRRZEKEES KA
ERAAEBFERBTAEZER

(Ft2E 28(a)(iv)) °

RARBEFABRRZMBEEED
EAiﬁéulbg’%‘:{%EU%;ﬁﬁ/EEb ©

BRARBFAEBRRZUKEEZ
AREEB G AGRERERZ
[Hbliiz (FE) —F58 (=
6) °

FBERAES 2 X AERBENE
BHiE2RITEANERNE -
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21 Inventories

Finished goods

Less: provision for obsolete inventories

R
. REFERE

The cost of inventories recognised as expense

and included in “cost of sales”

in the consolidated

income statement amounted to HK$1,113,000 (2016:
HK$1,386,000) (note 7). A reversal of provisions for
HK$77,000 (2016: HK$88,000) of obsolescence of

inventories has been included in “cost of sales” in the

consolidated income statement (note 7).

22

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment of trade

receivables

Trade receivables — net
Prepayments

Other receivables and deposits

Less: other receivables and deposits —

non-current portion

Current portion

Trade and other receivables

B 5 B

ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 &8
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FExT
3,830 3,785
(3,592) (3,669)
238 116

BRAMI LT AGERRRIHER
KRIZ2BFERAE1,113,0008T(=F
— 734 1 1,386,00087T) (HizE7) - BRE
FEZBEBREE77,0008T(ZF—N
188,000/ T) Bt AGRE KW ERA

ZIHERA I(MEET) °

22 BHRAEMEKRIET

- B 5 RWEIRRERE

B5RWFIE — F8
BN FRE
Hit WA R RS

o B REWEERES —

FEREARD

TRENER 1D

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (i IR 4 &K BB R 2 A

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
29,993 37,984
(20,930) (22,423)
9,063 15,561
5,600 1,052
19,558 17,920
34,221 34,533
(4,757) (5,661)
29,464 28,872
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22 Trade and other receivables (continuea)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables

approximate their fair values (2016: same).

At 31st March 2017, trade and other receivables
are unsecured and interest-free, except for an other
receivable of HK$915,000 (2016: HK$4,830,000) which
is interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate plus 2%
per annum (2016: same) and secured by (i) first legal
charge over a property in Hong Kong with fair value of
approximately HK$16,760,000 (2016: HK$12,020,000);
and (i) a separate all moneys guarantee and indemnity
executed by a third party individual (2016: same), of
which HK$736,000 (2016: HK$4,501,000) is not repayable
within the next twelve months as at the balance sheet
date.

The credit terms to trade receivables generally range
from 7 to 90 days (2016: same).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice

date is as follows:

BB E=1EA
P =]
#3878 B

Current to 3 months
4 to 6 months

Over 6 months

22

R IR R MR

HORHMEWKHRIEAZ)
ESREMEWNRIBEZIRMSIEERD R
BEEE(ZZ2—7F : 8R3) -

R-ZE—tHF=A=+—-H BEFZk
HttERRBEABEFRREE  #
915,000 % jt (=& — 75 £ : 4,830,000
B ZHMERREREEBREER
EM2EZERNER(ZZE—XRE : ME)
8 WA (i) & 2 {E# 16,760,000 7 7T
(ZZ—7"%¥ 1 12,020,00087T) 2 &8
MFEZE—AERT ; R(FE=FEA
BIYIZBYUHERRBERIE(ZZ
—7RF AR EE A - 736,000
FT(ZZE—XE 14,501,000 7T) FF
REERRT_EAREE -

%

BEERWHREBAZEEH —RNF7E90
R(ZZ—RF @R) -

ERBZAHFELZE S EBRERER
DHRWT :

2017 2016
—2—t%F —E-ARE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExr TET
9,063 11,781

- 1,450

20,930 24,753
29,993 37,984
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22 Trade and other receivables (continuea)

At 31st March 2017, trade receivables of HK$1,684,000
(2016: HK$5,654,000) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing

analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Up to 3 months =@EAR
Over 3 months B =18 A

At 31st March 2017, trade receivables of HK$20,930,000
(2016: HK$22,423,000) were impaired and fully provided
for. The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to
a long-outstanding customer, which is in unexpectedly

difficult financial situation.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AR#E
NTD e

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (i IR 4 &K BB R 2 A

ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

22 BHOREMBIKRIE =)

R-ZE—tFE=A=+—-H B
g 7% 1B 1,684,0008 T(=Z & — N F
5,654,000 7t) 2 B EAEREE - ZE
FEUFRIBER S B BT A R 2 82 2 18
VYEFEE - 25 E 5 RIRIEZRE
DT :

i3

2017 2016
—2—t%F —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExr THET
1,684 3,324

- 2,330

1,684 5,654

R-ZB—+t&E=A=+—H, E5EK
X 1820,930,0008 T(= F — XN F :
22,423,000 7v) 2R B & 7F H & %
B ERRMERRABEETERE —ZHR
BRI BRSE S RBTFEE -

FEBE SR EMBERRKIAZRESHE
LIT SIS EHE -

2017 2016
—=—tF —E—RE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
27,013 21,509
5,159 11,175
2,049 1,849
34,221 34,533
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22 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 22 5 REMBUYKRIE @)
Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of AEBESERFIERERE2EBW
trade receivables are as follows: T:

2017 2016
—E=—+tf —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
At 1st April 2016 and 2015 RIE—RERZZF—IF
HA—H 22,423 34,910
Reversal of impairment of trade g ZEWHIERERD
receivables (note 7) (H1aE7) - (12,154)
Written-off of trade receivables 88 & 5 FE TR (1,493) —
Exchange difference BN =% - (333)
At 31st March 2017 and 2016 REB-—LFERZZT-ARF
=HA=+—~H 20,930 22,423
The release of provision for impaired receivables RERE R ERURIERE —BE T ALK
have been included in administrative expenses in the GRERAZITEEAXZ (HEE7)

consolidated income statement (note 7).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting REEAzERaEERKA K EE
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable W FRIE 2 BREE ©

mentioned above.

23 Cash and cash equivalents and short- 23 HeaRERBAELHAEBARER
term bank deposits TER

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Cash and cash equivalents ReRZERBREER 123,585 228,592

Short-term bank deposits FEERITIE K 2,258 —

125,843 228,592
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23 Cash and cash equivalents and short-
term bank deposits (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits

are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AR
SGD 303K 7T
NTD maw
usD EY

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 0.7% (2016: 0.7%) per annum as at 31st March
2017. These deposits have an average maturity of 138
days (2016: 182 days).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (=i iR 44 & S &£ B B R 2 |

ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 BeRFERABRESIEAREHE
TER@E)
HEPERKRESEBEEUREHRITER
LT 5 # B A -

2017 2016
—Z2—+tF —E—-RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
115,625 204,412
5,020 18,070

13 14

5,020 5,931

165 165
125,843 228,592

R-Z—tF=A=+—H EHRT
FRZEBENRROTE(ZF—R
FI0TE)  ZEHFRZFHIHRE
188 A (=F—RF :182H) °



24 Share capital and premium

(a)

(b)

Share capital

Authorised

Ordinary share of HK$0.02

each

Issued and fully paid

Ordinary share of HK$0.02

each

Share premium

Share premium

B

BREE0.02/8T
ZEBR

ERTRBE

BREE0.028T
ZERER

R RE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

24 BRERBR
(a) B&=®
2017 2016
—2—tF —E—NE§

Number of Number of

shares shares

ROKE Ri28E
000 HK$°000 '000 HK$’000
Fi& FET TR FET

15,000,000 300,000 15,000,000 300,000

5,923,739 118,475 5,923,739 118,475

(b) BRIERE
2017 2016
—Z2—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FRET FHET
407,428 407,428
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25 Share-based payments 25 LIRS ERZIR

168

The Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) in the annual general meeting
held on 1st September 2014. Under the scheme,
72,800,000 options were granted on 29th September
2014 at the exercise price of HK$0.7 per share. Of the
options granted, 30% vested on 29th March 2015, 30%
vested on 29th September 2015 and the remaining 40%
vested on 29th March 2016. Each share option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding

are as follows:

At beginning of the year F0
Forfeited R U
Exercised 1IfE
At end of the year F

As at 31st March 2017, all outstanding options were
exercisable and no options were exercised during the
year. Share options outstanding at the end of the year
will be expired on 28th September 2017.

The weighted average fair value of options determined
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model was HK$0.21361
per option. The significant inputs into the model were
share price of HK$0.61 at the grant date, exercise price
of HK$0.70, volatility of 61.64%, dividend yield of 0.00%,
an expected option life of three years, and a risk-free

interest rate of 0.94%.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 5 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

AATNER-_ZFE—WFNA— HET
ZERRBFASHERRM—EER
T E(ZTE D RIBEZE &
72,800,000 EIREN =" —F h
BZt+hBRYE  THEERSRKRTE
T IRHZBREESR > 30%ER=
Z-AF=ZRA=-1+HhhBEEBE 30%2
RZZB-HFAAZTHhBHEBRHET
WHERZZE—ANF=ZA=+NABER
B -BHBRERTIEEARINZELR
NAIZ—REBR °

EARITEZBRELHE ST :

No. of share options
Year ended 31st March
FERRERE
BEZA=1+—HL=FE
2017 2016
—Z—+tf —E-RE

57,672,000 71,220,000
(1,630,000) (2,844,000)
—  (10,704,000)

56,042,000 57,672,000

R-ZZE—tHE=A=+—H8 " FFEMEX
TEZERETTTE  TERBRED
RERTE - FRERTEZBERES
R-ZB—tFEAA=-T+NAEH -

BREZMELIAABIDUAZER
HETEEXEET BOBRESR
0213618 T - WERXZFTEHEAR
ARz RE0.61/8 T {THEME0.70
BT~ HIE61.64% ~ & B 20.00% °
ETEREERH=FRERBRA=E
0.94% o
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26 Reserves 26 f#fE
2017 2016
—2—tF —EB-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAEIT FET
Share redemption reserve % 10 B B {3 s 12 12
Contributed surplus (note (ii) BN BER (BIEE (i) 189,009 189,009
Exchange difference FE 5 =28 8,814 4,358
Buildings revaluation reserve BFEARHE 73,048 71,464
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHENKEEEMLRE
revaluation reserve 5,645 7,119
Share-based payment reserve DARR 0 5 B H 2 S FR A 11,861 12,178
Accumulated losses ZitEE (132,716) (50,774)
155,673 233,366
()  Movements of each component of the reserves are set () RESHOZEDRNGEESE
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. BE
(i)  The contributed surplus of the Group represents the i) AEBZ2HAEREREREZ
credit arising from the reduction of share capital during —NMANFE=ZB=+—HLEFE
the year ended 31st March 1999, and the transfer HREBRARBE=ZSE—ZTF=H
from share premium during the year ended 31st March Et—HALEEEREROREM
2010. EEZER-

27 Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

27 B REMEMRERA

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

g S ESFIE 2,090 7,312
HibENFRIEREFTEH 75,478 95,313
77,568 102,625
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27 Trade and other payables (Continueq) 27 B REMEMRE R
BEoEMNRIBEREZERARZRR DT

The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is

170

as follows:

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
other payables approximate their fair values, and are

denominated in the following currencies:

T :

2017 2016

—=E—+tfF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Current to 3 months ENEiZ={@ A 449 5,238
4 to 6 months P i - 245
Over 6 months BB A A 1,641 1,829
2,090 7,312

FEEESZREMENTRIAZRAEHE
BN AREMEE > WUTIEMEE

2017 2016
—E=—tF —E—-RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

HK$ T 36,884 29,243
RMB AR#E 40,524 72,915
usD E - 113
NTD Ak 160 354
77,568 102,625

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (=i iR 44 & S &£ B B R 2 |
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28 Borrowings and obligations under 28 FEEERMEEAVAR
finance leases

2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—XREF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Secured bank loans — current portion BIEABITER — RBEVEH 1,441 1,337
Secured bank loans — non-current BIRFIRITER — ERBER D
portion 7,789 8,675
Total borrowings (note(a)) BRI (M (a) 9,230 10,012
Obligations under finance leases (note(b)) BERNEE (KL (b))
— Current portion — REIH 236 175
— Non-current portion — ERBFMH 312 75
548 250
(a) Borrowings (a) f&E
The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows: AEBEEEER T HABEEE :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Within 1 year —F R 1,441 1,337
Between 1 to 2 years —ZWER 1,470 1,353
Between 2 to 5 years MERER 4,603 4,232
Later than 5 years HF#% 1,716 3,090
9,230 10,012
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28 Borrowings and obligations under
finance leases (Continued)

(a) Borrowings (Continued)

At 31st March 2017, banking facilities amounting to
HK$78,109,000 (2016: HK$77,220,000) granted by

banks to the Group are secured by the following:

(ii)

(iii)

legal charges over certain of the Group’s
freehold land and certain buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$22,043,000
(2016: HK$20,936,000) (note 13(c)) and certain
of the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$47,500,000
(2016: HK$56,049,000) (note 14(b));

corporate guarantees executed by the

Company;

pledged bank deposits of HK$23,500,000
(2016: HK$23,500,000) of the Group (note
19(b)); and

financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$26,987,000 (2016: HK$22,977,000)
of the Group (note 20(b)).

At 31st March 2017, the Group’s bank borrowing

bears an interest rate at 1.9% per annum and is

denominated in NTD.

The fair values of the borrowings approximate their

carrying amounts at 31st March 2017 and 2016.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 5 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

28 {EERMEHEVART =)

(a)

HE(E

RZZE—tF=A=+—H &8
#78,109,0008 JT(= & — 7R F :
77,220,000 70) 2 $R1TRBE ER
TRFAEE - WHTIEBFKR

e

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

A=

B H #2 {8 5 22,043,0005% 7T
—Z — N : 20,936,000&
T)ZAEBETFRKAEEL
#h B FREF (M 13(0) &
BR T #2 {8 A 47,500,000 7T
(=2 — 7 : 56,049,000 /&
7O ZAEEE T IREYEE (M
FE14(b)) ZEEMRT

RRFBIM 2 DR

AEBDEFRITEX
23,500,000 7T(= & — X
% : 23,500,000 7t ) (Fff 5%
19(b) s &

TEERDIABEFTABRRZ
B 7% & = 26,987,000 78 T (=
T — X% 122,977,000 T)
(FfzE20(b)) °

Z—tHE=A=1+—-R0 F&

Bz RITIEERFRNRI19ETR
RUHEHEE -



28 Borrowings and obligations under
finance leases (Continued)
(b) Obligations under finance leases
The rights to the leased asset are reverted to the
lessor in the event of default of the lease liabilities

by the Group.

Gross finance lease liabilities — RMEENEELE —
minimum lease payments: BEEELR
— No later than 1 year — — R
— Later than 1 year and no later — —FUFREFR

than 5 years

Future finance charges on finance RIERN Z RRMEE R

leases

Present value of finance lease MEENEBZRE

liabilities

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as

follows:

— No later than 1 year - —FR

— Later than 1 year and no later than — —FLUERFAFR
5 years

“~

E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

(b) MEHENAR

28 {EERMEHEVART =)

fAKEERBNEE  MENE
EZENERETHAA -

2017 2016
—e—tFE —EF-AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
252 181

323 75

575 256

(27) ©)

548 250

BARNARZRENT :

2017 2016
—E—tE —T-AF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FHT
236 175

312 75

548 250

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 &%k

173



B B ‘7
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

29 Deferred income tax 29 RIEFRGIR

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset B A CEEFI TR ERE
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current EEHEHMEHAa GRS BELEAM
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities BHREENEBEHER —HEKE R —E
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities FTEERREEB AR 2SR AER
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation MEBEREERFHEEELERE
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable B BIEEZERSHEEREEESERIK
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances $H o RIEFISHEERELEMEHRAE
on a net basis. The analysis of deferred income tax DT -

assets and deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Deferred income tax assets to be AR 128 B Z U E ZIEE
recovered after more than 12 months FriEEE (3,442) (3,543)
Deferred income tax liabilities to be BREB 12 EEE ZIEL
crystallised after more than 12 months FisfHias 26,264 26,041
Deferred income tax liabilities — net EIEFTBREE — B8 22,822 22,498
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is IREFTSFERE 2 FE T :
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
At 1st April 2016 and 2015 R-B-—RER=Z-HF
WA —H 22,498 22,373
Tax charged to the consolidated income R&GA IR RN ZHiE
statement (note 9) (K& 9) 231 28
Tax charged to other comprehensive REM 2 E SR 2 B8
income 380 311
Exchange differences EHEZE (287) (214)
At 31st March 2017 and 2016 R-EBE—tER-Z—REF
=H=+—H 22,822 22,498

174 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 4% 45 51 &£ B B bR 2 &



29 Deferred income tax (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets

and liabilities during the year, without taking into

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same

tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

At 1st April 2015
Charged/(credited) to the
consolidated income

statement
Charged to other
comprehensive income

Exchange differences

At 31st March 2016

(Credited)/charged to the
consolidated income
statement

Charged to other
comprehensive income

Exchange differences

At 31st March 2017

R-ZE—-—HFENBE—H
REEWERNBR,
(5t A)

REMEEE R

BN EER

RizalER(GEA),/
NER

RE A2 E YRS HER

X =%

R-ZE—tHF
=R=+—~H

> <;

HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

29 RIEFRSM (#)
KEARHER 2 BB SR E R &
CTERNEEFEREERGESH N

T :
BEFRGRAR
Accelerated
tax Fair value
depreciation gains Total
MERBRE [RERS #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
5,736 20,223 25,959
51 (66) (15)
— 311 311
— (214) (214)
5,787 20,254 26,041
(26) 156 130
= 380 380
— (287) (287)
5,761 20,503 26,264
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29 Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets

At 1st April 2016 and 2015

MA—H
Charged to the consolidated income RirE SR MBR
statement
At 31st March 2017 and 2016 R=B—tFER=ZF—7
=BA=+—H

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
HK$468,756,000 (2016: HK$411,143,000) that can be
carried forward against future taxable income. These tax
losses have not been recognised due to uncertainty of
future realisation. Such tax losses have no expiry date,
except for the tax losses amounting to HK$120,510,000
(2016: HK$89,388,000) which will be expired within 5

years.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (=i iR 44 & S &£ B B R 2 |

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 SEREFRISIR (&)

R-ZB-AER-B-—IHF

BIEFRFREE
Tax losses
RESH
2017 2016
—Z—tF —E—RE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FExT
(3,543) (3,586)
101 43
~E

(3,442) (8,543)

AR BB BAERAREBERNRE TaE
BARRERBABEFURRERRER
RELFEBHREE - AEBHERER
i 18 &5 18 468,756,00058 T(= & — N
% 411,143,000 78 T ) 7] 45 85 LUIK 84
RRZERBRBA - BATREEES
RERER HUEBIAZEBES
18 - Br 120,510,000 8 T (=T — <& :
89,388,000 7T ) 2 BB BN A F
REIHE  ZERBFHBELEEEA -



30 Cash used in operations

used in operations

Loss before income tax

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights (note 12)

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (note 13)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment (note 13)

Fair value (gains)/losses on
revaluation of investment
properties (note 14)

Amortisation of film rights
(note 15)

Provision for impairment of film
rights and films in progress
(note 15)

Share of losses/(profits) of
associates (note 16)

Share of loss of joint ventures
(note 17)

Reversal of impairment of trade
receivables

Gain on disposal of available-for-
sale financial assets (note 6)

Impairment loss on available-for-
sale financial assets (note 20(a))

Gain on disposal of interest in an
associate (note 16(c))

Gain on disposals of subsidiaries
(note 6)

Fair value (gains)/losses on
financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (note 6)

BRATISBLAT S 18

KA

TS £ K £ 3 A 8
(MiaE12)

Y% - HEBERREBINE
(MtaE13)

Y% - HEERERIERE
(MtaE13)

REMEBE-ZAAE
(k=) &8
(Kiat 14)
(Kt 15)

EXIRERBHEPEEREE
A& (K 15)

FE(REtE N T (E5R) /FiE

(B1aE 16)
EhaEhEEE(ME17)
B 5 EWEIERERRE

HERHEENBEE 2 Wk

(et 6)
AHEEMBEE 2 RERBRE
(Bt 20(a))
HERBE AR 2 B2 Wik
(Haz 16(c))

HEMB LRz W (AfE6)
BARME
BEZ
(Btez6)

AEmR %
RE(WER) BB

s

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 EEMALRS

Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash (a)

RAESRAEREBSEMRARS&Z
HIE

2017 2016
—Z2—+tF —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$°000
TFAEIT FET
(85,071) (70,502)
788 788
13,846 15,952
14,058 —
(8,130) 10,441
32,177 22,617
18,278 17,904
949 (2,485)

797 —
- (12,154)
- (10,554)

- 1,150

(7,771) =
(11,638) -
(4,140) 14,349
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30 Cash used in operations (Continued) 30 BEFRTARE& #)

Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash (a)

CON

used in operations (Continued)

Reversal of obsolescence of
inventories (note 7)

Share-based payment expense

Interest income (note 8)

Interest expense on loans (note 8)

Interest element of finance leases
(note 8)

Reversal of provision for amounts
due from an associate

Impairment of other intangible
assets

Exchange losses

Changes in working capital:

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from associates
Amounts due from joint ventures
Trade and other payables
Receipts in advance

Cash used in operations

REFERL(HZ7)

LUR 5 B2 2 A RRBI
MEWA (BaE 8)
EXA S (AE8)
BMEBEY 2R L0 (A2 8)

P B & A B RIE 2 BB R
Hitv B EERE

B 518

EEESEH:

FE

B2 R HRWRE

FE Wi Bt 0 B RROR

FEus & & ¥R

B5 RAEMENRIR
AW FRE

EEARE

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (=i iR 44 & S &£ B B R 2 |

SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrERABEEREEMARSZ
HiR(E)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET
(77) (88)

- 6,124
(1,314) (1,066)

225 535

9 11
- (6,897)

- 146

7,966 6,981

(54) 112

21 7,748

(5,836) 1,597
(2,496) —
(29,373) 3,711)
12,370 756
(54,416) (246)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nv'ﬁ (=P j%%#ﬁ%%BﬁLI

On 13th April 2011,
summons and a statement of claim, which was further
amended on 12th October 2012, 4th April 2014 and 30th

the Company received a writ of

March 2017, with no specified amount of the amount
of damages being claimed by a third party in respect of
alleged fraudulent breaches relating to the management

of an associated company which is under liquidation.

The directors of the Company, after taking advice from
the legal advisors which have considered the information
so far available, consider such claim is not strong,
and the Company has a good chance to defend its
position. In this regard, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate any material liabilities would arise from
this litigation and there would be no material impact
to the financial statements of the Company and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st March 2016 and 2017.

30 Cash used in operations (Continued) 30 EEMAREw
(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year (b) EFAMBTEFHIIN
Obligations
Bank loans under finance leases
MITER MEHEVAR
2017 2016 2017 2016
Bt ZZT-XF IZB—tF ZZT-XF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FEIT FET
At 1st April 2016 and 2015 —RER=FE
—hHFEMAB—H 10,012 35,450 250 419
Proceeds from bank loans RITERZAERE - 7,000 - -
Repayments of bank loans BERITER (1,367) (32,327) - -
Inception of finance lease RMEBLAHR - - 500 -
Repayments of capital element EEREHRN AL
of finance leases ik - - (202) (169)
Exchange differences ENER 585 (111) - -
At 31st March 2017 and 2016 RZZE—tERK=F
—~E=A=1+—H 9,230 10,012 548 250
31 Contingencies 31 BRER

R-ZZ2-——FHNA+=R " AQREE
—HERSKRERREAR=ZT—=
£+A+-R - —Z-WEMAMA
E—Z-—tF=ZA=1tHEE-FE
) —BEZFUBERETRERE
BABMENREEB2EBRFTRAZ
EERESHERELABRREE -

ERBAEERzRR(EERESH
BERZ ARAEERR FHEA
REEEH  MALABROEESRH
MG R E o BENL ZIK’D\ﬂE?i‘E,HE
FHEFDRTEELEEMERERE
EHEBE-_ZT—RER=-FT— -I:E H
=+ -RALFERRFZHBHRREA
EEZGRENBHRRELEATE -
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32 Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the

reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

Film rights, films in progress and film &E&iRE « BEHEE
royalty deposits 5

Investments (note (a))

EXMELZE
RE (R (a)

Licenses i #E

(@)

In August 2014, the Group entered into agreements
to set up joint ventures, MREEZFHRREEER
RARTEXER DandBREXAZTTERRERE
SREEREBTEXEZZHREE]D. As at 31st
March 2017, the Group had a financial commitment
of RMB49,500,000 (equivalent to HK$55,876,000)
in respect of unpaid capital contributions to these
joint ventures, which represented the Group’s
49.5% equity interests in £XEDHREE (2016:
RMB49,500,000 (equivalent to HK$59,237,000) in
respect of unpaid capital contributions to these joint
ventures, which represented the Group’s 49.5%
equity interests in @XETHREE).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 4% 45 51 &£ B B bR 2 &

NOTES TO ;I'HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 BEKIE
RBEHAREBTHNEREE S EAEX
mE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBIT FBT
60,786 63,572
55,876 59,237
2,730 5,152
119,392 127,961

(@)

R=ZZ—WFENA > REBMTLIH
BURUEGECEMASEFER
EEBEAERLAATEEFRIDE
FMREXETERREESCER
REB(EXEZZHREED -
R-ZZBE—tHFE=F=+—0 ' &
EEFOZEEELEFEZK
T HEEEE A K% 49,500,000 7T
(18 & 7 55,876,000 7T ) Z Bt %
A HEREAEEREKED
EREBZ495%BRE(ZF—X
FOZREEECEFEZRGEH
B 55 AR 49,500,000 7t (FHE A
59,237,000/ T) » HERAEE
REXETERES Z249.5% K
FE) o



33 Operating lease commitments

(a)

Operating lease commitments — as lessee

The Group leases certain offices and premises
in respect of its theatre operations under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease
terms are between 1 to 20 years, and the majority
of lease agreements are renewable at the end of the
lease period at market rate. The future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

Within 1 year —F R

Later than 1 year and no later than —FUERAFR
5 years

Later than 5 years hF#E

During the year ended 31st March 2017, the
Group entered into operating lease arrangements
in respect of rental expenses amounting to
HK$7,387,000 (2016: HK$7,607,000) (note 7).

Vi

LTE—

O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

33 EEHHKIE

(a)

BEHVRE-FEREREAA
FEERAELREEBRETTHR
HEERIBRERAETHAE
M BN F—Z=+F - BX
BB EAH R T RABARZEH B K
FEME - REBETATREEEEENT
T2 RREEESRENT -

2017 2016
—2—t%F —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT TET
6,130 6,352
24,877 25,513
58,683 71,163
89,690 103,028

BE-_Z—+tH&=A=+—HIHF
E - AEEREEH X 7,387,000
B t(= & — X §F 17,607,000 %
TO) RIS ERNZHE (ML) ©
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33 Operating lease commitments (Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments — as lessor

The Group leases its investment properties to
certain tenants under non-cancellable operating
lease arrangements. The lease terms are between
1 to 3 years. The future aggregate minimum lease

receipts under non-cancellable operating leases are

as follows:
Within 1 year —FR
Later than 1 year and no later than —FLUERAFR

5 years

As at 31st March 2017 and 2016, the Company
did not have any significant commitments under

operating leases.

34 Disposals of subsidiaries

(@)

With issuance of MAMO’s shares to an independent
external party in August 2016, the Group’s equity
interest in MAMO has been diluted from 55% to
49.5%, resulting in a loss in control over MAMO and
its financial results will no longer be consolidated

into the financial statements of the Group.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 4% 45 51 &£ B B bR 2 &

S TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 EEHVRIE=)

(b)

BEEHRE-FESHEA
AEBERET T HBEKEEAZ
mEFHFHEARENHX - B
BNF—Z=F - RETTHHE
ERAWEZ KRR REE SR
T

2017 2016
—2—tF —E-AE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
2,629 4,448
1,391 952
4,020 5,400

RZE—tERZZE—XRE=H
=+—H  RRQABRLEFMELRL
SR A RIE o

34 HEMBLR

()

RZZBE—XRENAO—BBILIE
ALTBITETRYBERRGE
AEBREGRYER 2 RESH
55% B £49.5% » BH Kk EH
EDRYBEE 2 EGIE 0 HBRKE
BETERAEE 2B BRERAGE
PN
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34 Disposals of subsidiaries (Continued) 34 HEMBATR (2

(@) (Continued) () (#&)
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control ERAEHEZEEHEEE T

was lost: T
HK$°000
FET
Property, plant and equipment Y3 ~ BB R R 87
Cash and cash equivalents ReRZRREER 535
Trade receivables g 5 EWMIE 42
Deposit, prepayment and other receivables &% » FANRERH MEKFIE 160
Other payables and accruals HAih e IE R LT E (9,885)
Provisions e (50)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEFEE (9,111)
Non-controlling interests IR = 4,100
Investment in an associate (Note 16) REEE ARl 2 1RE (Kt 16) (10,340)

Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIELEMB AR 2R (At 6)

(Note 6) 15,351
Consideration KE =
An analysis of the outflow of cash and cash HEMBARREZRERERREE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiary BT :
is as follows:

HK$°000

FET

Cash consideration received BWRRERE =

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERERERESIER (535)
Outflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEMBARREZERER

respect of the disposal of subsidiary ERREIEH (535)
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34 Disposals of subsidiaries (Continued)

(b)

The Group disposed certain subsidiaries during the

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 HEMBAR #)

year and the analysis of assets and liabilities over

which control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

Trade payables

Net assets disposed of

Exchange gains reclassified from exchange

reserve

Non-controlling interests

Loss on disposals of subsidiaries (Note 6)

Consideration

LUE B 18
ReRkERBRLEE
B2 BWIE
B 5 BAFE

HELRBEEHR 282

B 5 i

FFEER S

HEHB QR 2 &R (HE6)

RE

An analysis of the outflow of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the disposals of

subsidiaries is as follows:

Cash consideration received

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

Outflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries

(b)

AEERFAHEETHEAR -
ERARAECEEREEI NN
T

HK$’000
FHAT
226

518

94
(191)

647

(244)

3,768

(3,713)

458

HEMBARREZ2RERERR
EHEEDHMUT -

HK$°000

FET

EWEREESRE 458

EHERERERREEE (518)
HERBATDREZEESR

£EERLEHR (60)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (=i iR 44 & &£ BB R 2 |



35 Related party transactions
Save as disclosed in other notes to the consolidated

financial statements, significant related party

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

35 FREALRS
BRARAR G B R ELA MY AT R
S AEERAREBBRAETZE

transactions, which were carried out in the ordinary AKEBEALRZWT :
course of the Group’s business, are as follows:
(a) Sales of services (a) SRERF
2017 2016
—E=—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Rental income received/receivable  HEAMNAEYETHE AT 2
from rental of office premises to an 2 FEWHE S WA
associate 734 734
Management fee income received/ B TEWKEAT2EEE
receivable from an associate A 245 245
Service fee income received/ B WS DT 2 REE
receivable from an associate KA 1,845 —
Interest income received/receivable B Uk FEUELE A T2 5 E
from an associate PN 310 —
3,134 979

(b)

Sales of services are transacted at normal
commercial terms that are consistently applied to

all customers.

Purchases of services (b)

BN/ BN TFHEDRZ
BRRERIBERE

Post-production and origination
services paid/payable to an
associate

Playout services paid/payable to an BAF FEN FHE AT 2

associate & hh AR 75
Other administrative costs paid/ B/ BN FEE AT 2
payable to an associate H At 4T BUR A

HERBNEEREARMERR

2 — MR R IRFRIETT o

RRBRH
2017 2016
—2—tF —
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEr TAET
12,119 8,850
4,933 4,068
400 400
17,452 13,318
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35 Related party transactions (Continued)

(b) Purchases of services (Continued)

Purchases of services are transacted at normal

commercial terms that are consistently applied to

all suppliers.

(c) Key management compensation

Key management personnel are deemed to
be the members of the Board of Directors of
the Group who have the responsibility for the
planning, directing, controlling and the execution

of the activities of the Group. Key management

(b) FRER¥(E)

35 BRAEATE S @)

ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BERBIDRERERRAEHE
B2 —RERRFRET ©

(c) FREEAAHM
FEBEFEREWRATRER

compensation is disclosed in note 39(a) to the

consolidated financial statements.

(d) Year-end balances

Receivables from associates
(note 16)

Receivables from joint ventures
(note 17(a))

36 Dividends

The directors do not recommend the payment of a

dividend in respect of the year ended 31st March 2017

(2016: nil).

A REREEHE ER
BEHRATAEEZEE - TEF
BAESBEERSMBHRRME

39(a) HIFE °
(d) F#R#EeR
2017 2016
—=—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
F#EITT FET
FEW & N Bl 5k I8
(K1at 16) 13,757 7,921
WG ErERE
(BtzF 17(a)) 5,015 =
36 BIR2

) o

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (i IR 4 &K BB R 2 A
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37 KEEE — EEMELF

Percentage of

37 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

Particulars of effective interest

Place of issued share capital/ held/controlled
Name incorporation Principal activities registered capital by the Group
BRiTRs/ FREBE /26
an A B L 0 B IERS EME XS CHEREREAL
Shares held directly by the Company:
FATEERARR
Mei Ah Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands  Investment holding 50,050 ordinary shares 100
of US$1 each
EBEARE REER 50,050 REREE 1 X2
LER
Shares held indirectly by the Company:
FOTMERARIR :
Brilliant Idea Group Limited Hong Kong Production of films and 10,000 ordinary shares 95
tele-features of HK$1 each
AT EFRMFERAR i HEBYRERT K 10,000 REREE 1 B2
LER
Cameron Entertainment Company Limited Hong Kong Production of films and 2 ordinary shares 100
tele-features of HK$1 each
SEREERAT B HEEYRERY 2REREE1BAZERR
MATV Limited Hong Kong Television operations 4 ordinary shares 100
of HK$1 each
FRERERAT B EREH AREREE1BIZERER
MATV (Asia) Limited Hong Kong Television operations 20,000 ordinary shares 100
of HK$1 each
FRER(ENERAT B EREH 20,000 R BREE1 BT
EER
Mei Ah (HK) Company Limited Hong Kong Sales and distribution of 10,000 ordinary shares 100
audio visual products of HK$1 each
25 (EB)BRAH i HERBTYEER 10,000 RBREE 18T
LER
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37 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

(Continued)

Name

4

Shares held indirectly by the Company: (Continued)

FNFRERERR : (4

Mei Ah Film Production Company Limited

ZLEYAFEERLT

Mei Ah Investment Company Limited

XEMEREARLT

Mei Ah Entertainment Productions Limited

XEEEREARLT

BIG Artiste Management Limited

ATHEERAF

Place of

incorporation

M A I B

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

&k

Hong Kong

&k

Hong Kong

&R

Principal activities

IERE

Production of films and
tele-features
SEEYRERT H

Property investment

ES

Concert performance

e
BIEE

Artiste management

EAER

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (=i iR 44 & S &£ B B R 2 |
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37 KEEE — EEMELF

Percentage of
effective interest
held/controlled

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
BRIk
EREEER

by the Group
3 1 PR
ZENESEAL

2 ordinary shares 100
of HK$1 each
2RERAEE1 BT EER

2 ordinary shares 100
of HK$1 each
500,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$1 each

2RERAE1ERZERBR
500,000 REREE 1B
ZERZRELRHD

10,000 ordinary shares 55
of HK$1 each

10,000 REREE1ETZ
LER

1 ordinary share 100
of HK$1 each
1REE1ETZEBR
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37 Group structure — principal subsidiaries 37 £E&EE — ETEMRBELT
(Continued) (#&)

Particulars of

Percentage of

effective interest

Place of issued share capital/ held/controlled
Name incorporation Principal activities registered capital by the Group
ERiTRE/ 3 1 PR
1] EE R L TERH EMEFHE LERREEAL
Shares held indirectly by the Company: (Continued)
FOFMERERR : (8)
BFETEERFERA R (hote () (Wi (c)) PRC Property investment RMB16,000,000 70
H MERE AK#16,000,000 T
FRREFAU (LR BRAF PRC Provision of services RMB10,000,000 100
(note (d)) (#iZ(a)) H PR fR A AK#10,000,000 7T
ETREFREE (LR BRAT PRC Theatre investment RMB20,000,000 100
(note (d)) (#iZ(a)) H EFRRE AK#20,000,0007
ZLYH(KR)ERAA PRC Theatre operations RMB3,000,000 100
(note (c)) (At (c)) H EFRER AK#3,000,000 7T
ZLREBRROERAA Taiwan Sub-licensing of film rights 2,000,000 ordinary shares 85
and television operations  of NTD10 each
=) EREYMERSRER 2,000,000 REREE10
FRBZEER
EDXK (XR)MEBRAF (note (d)) (Ai£(@)  PRC Video online investment HK$2,500,000 90
HE FRRRRRERE 2,500,000 7
EDREK(L8)BRAF (note (c) (fiz#(c)  PRC Theatre operations RMB6,000,000 100
HE Eb eSS AE#6,000,0007
FREREFRT (LR BRAR PRC Distribution of films RMB5,000,000 100
(note (d)) (#/iZ (c)) A RTEY AK%5,000,000 7t
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37 Group structure — principal subsidiaries
(Continued)

Note:

(@)

Other than MATV (Asia) Limited which operates in
Hong Kong and overseas, EFIEEEEREERAR,
EDREBEAEEAER)EBRAR, ESREFRERE (&
F)ERATF, EREB(RE)ERAR, ERAKRLR)
BEERAR, EDRTER(L8)BRAR and X2
PRES 3T (L) BR2AE which operate in the PRC,
EmRLEREKMHEMRLT which operates in Taiwan,
all subsidiaries principally operate in Hong Kong.

All subsidiaries listed above are limited liability
companies.

Being sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises
established under the PRC laws.

Being wholly foreign owned enterprises established
under the PRC laws.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (=i iR 44 & S &£ B B R 2 |

ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 KEEE — EEMELF

(&)
Riat -

(a)

BREGDER(@RMNBRIANES
KgHhge s BEMEZEBENEE
RAT > ERRWHHEXELR)
BERAF XERFHKEE(L
FR)BERAT - R (RZR)ER
DR ERRRE)BRFEERL
ARG NREKRE(LEEB)BERAF
RXTZEREZBTHERTARA
ARFEEE  IREDREBR
ROBRIANREEZEN - iE
MBARERAEEBEE -

LHREHB AR RBRAF o
ARBPBEEERLZHIEED
E

ARBPEEERLZIEBED
E
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38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of
the Company

(a)

Balance sheet of the Company

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries
and amounts due from
subsidiaries

Current assets
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

BE

FETRENE E
REE QR E®mK
FEUs B 188 2 B R IR

REEE
BNFRE
BehFERBELER

HRE

o
FLFHAAEGEES

R
Hﬁ’fﬁ/ 15
f#fE

wEa

afR
RERRE
HAbfE Y FH

HAR

HERRAR

The balance sheet of the Company was approved
by the Board of Directors on 29th June 2017 and

were signed on its behalf.

Director

EFE

Li Kuo Hsing

ZEE

38 FAFIZHREARERREM

-] )
(a) FLFIZEEREBR
As at 31st March
BR=B=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt F#ET FET
640,893 549,582
337 337
100,029 195,211
100,366 195,548
741,259 745,130
24 118,475 118,475
24 407,428 407,428
Note
Kzt (b) 214,835 218,747
740,738 744,650
521 480
521 480
741,259 745,130

ARBzEERBERR-F—tHF
NAEZtThREES=EHE XM

RERBHE -

Director
EE
Tong Hing Chi
EE#

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¥k

191



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 38 FLFIZEEAERREM

the Company Continued) 2] 1€ )]
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) FLFZHEBEH
Share Share-based
redemption payment  Contributed Accumulated
reserve reserve surplus losses Total
LRt 5 ER
BRIMOGER  ZfIRER BARE RiER st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET T FAx FET FET
(note (i))
(Wt ()
At 1st April 2015 R-Z-5HF
mA—H 12 8,482 235,020 (19,974) 223,540
Loss for the year EREE - - - (8,775) (8,775)
Equity settled share- ~ LAERZEURHBE
based transactions HB 2 {HRZ - 3,696 - 286 3,982
At 31st March 2016~ R=Z—X%
=A=t-H 12 12,178 235,020 (28,463) 218,747
At 1st April 2016 R-E—RF
mA—H 12 12,178 235,020 (28,463) 218,747
Loss for the year EREE - - - (3,912) (3,912)
At 31st March 2017 ~ R=Z—+f
=A=+-A 12 12,178 235,020 (32,375) 214,835
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38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of
the Company(Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company(Continued)

(i)

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the par
value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued share capital of the
subsidiaries and the net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired, the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital during the year
ended 31st March 1999 and the transfer from
share premium during the year ended 31st
March 2010. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus shall not be distributable if these are

reasonable grounds for believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities

as they become due; or

(2) the realisable value of the Company’s
assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium

account.

',-—; ' “y' B
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk TR

38 FAFIZHREARERREM

L] 1))

(b) FAFZAEMEH (F)

(i)

KAFZHBARGBEARD
ARBRBMEATDCRT
P 7 T 8 47 2 IR 19 T 18 B2 R
WENRBAREEFEZE
B REBZ-NAAAFE=A
=+ —BLEFEHRRAM
EEZERRNBE-Z—
TE=ZA=+—BLFEH
B REERER - RIE
BREE-NN—FQFEE
1E3T) » e EEEEAEE
THEE  BIBARBKRTH
DK

(1) AAARBRRELM
REBEREBEEM
X AEE R

(2 ARAEEZHUZRE
ESEMPREREBER
HEBITRAUR KRS
BERZB -
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39 Benefits and interests of directors

(@) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of all directors for the years
ended 31st March 2017 and 2016 is set out below:

Name of Director

15

Executive directors

Li Kuo Hsing

Tong Hing Chi (Chief Executive Officer)
Li Tang Yuk

Dong Ming

Non-executive directors
Hugo Shong
Alan Gole-Ford

Independent non-executive directors
Lam Lee G.

Guo Yan Jun

Leung Tak Sing, Dominic (note (i)

NSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WiEs

358
ERR(7HEH)
]

&

FUAER
RES
Alan Cole-Ford

RUFATES
b
RER )

39 EFmEAIRER

(a)

EEMe
BE_Z—tFR=-ZF—~F=A
St HLEFEXRESCHHE
T

017
ZE-tf

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the Company
or its subsidiary undertaking:

HEAREER(FRESATERREATRR MR EHKZAL

Other

remunerations

paid or

receivable

in respect

of director’s

other services

in connection

with the

management

of the affairs of

the Company or

its subsidiary

Employer's  undertaking

Allowance  contribution EajigR
and benefits toaretiement  FAFERE
inkind benefitscheme  KMBARER

Discretionary ~ 2RREWAIE fEe  BEEARE
Fees Salary bonuses (Note it BiEd Exfamhe Total
e ] Bt (Hstir) by i AtER at
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK§ 000
7 - FEr FAT -2 223 -
- 411 - - 18 - 4729
- 2,012 - - 18 - 2,090
- 699 - - 18 - "
- 2,133 - - 18 - 2,151
) - - - - - )
8 - - - - - )
) - - - - - )
) - - - - - )
& - - - - - 8
400 9,615 - - 7 - 10,087
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk TR

39 Benefits and interests of directors 39 EFERMIRER 2

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EF=B&(ZE)
BEZZE-—tFER=ZZT-AF=A
ST—HLEFEERXRBESCHME

The remuneration of all directors for the years
ended 31st March 2017 and 2016 is set out below:

AT

2016
St

Emoluments paid o receivable in respect of a person's services as a director, whether of the Company

or fts subsidiary undertaking:
BASERES (FRARARSENBLAEH BHER RN ZME
Other
remunerations
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management
of the affairs of
the Company
or its subsidiary
undertaking
Movance ~ Employers ~ EZ5EE
andbeneffts  contrbuton ~ AATEHS,
inkind toaretiement  EMEATER
Discretionary  EHRENFIE  benefitscheme  ERHHEH

Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses (Noteiy)  FEEZEK  EXHHEN Total
EELE] e 54 i hi)  BRGEMS  ZEEEM a3t
HK8'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$'000
741 FA1 -2 7AT -2 FA1 741
Executive directors BiTEs
Li Kuo Hsing %84 - 4647 - 600 18 - 5,265
Tong Hing Chi (Chief Executive Officer ERR(THEH) - 2,003 - 600 18 - 2541
LiTang Yuk 5B - % - 50 18 - 1,51
Dong Ming L - 2075 - 600 18 - 2,693
Non-executive directors FUAER
Hugo Shong RES 80 - - 139 - - 29
Alan Cole-Ford Alan Cole-Ford 80 = = 139 = = 219
Independent non-executive directors BUFMAES
Lam Lee G. T 80 - - 189 - - 219
Guo Yan Jun JRE 80 - - 139 - - 219
Leung Tak Sing, Dominic (note (i) 2E2 (1) = = - - - - _
Cheung Ming Man (note (i) RS ) 5 - - 139 - - 19
313 9,318 - 3,095 n - 12,918
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS Ak TR

39 Benefits and interests of directors
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &F #% £

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i) None of the directors has waived any of their
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31st
March 2017 and 2016.

(i)  The director was appointed on 1st March 2016.

(iiiy  The director resigned on 1st December 2015.

(iv) Other benefits represents share-based payment
expenses.

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the years ended 31st
March 2017 and 2016.

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the years ended 31st
March 2017 and 2016.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available director’s services

During the years ended 31st March 2017 and 2016,
no consideration was paid by the Company to third

parties for making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the years ended 31st March 2017 and 2016,
there are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with

such directors.

SENEEBRAA

39 EFRIRER 2

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEMeE)
)y WMEESHEBZE-Z—tHF
E=F—-—RE=ZA=+—HIL

FEZEAME -

iy ZEER-ZE—X~"E=F—H
BEE-

(i) ZEBER-_Z—HF+=-A—
HEHE o

(ivy) EHMBEREURGHER 2
M °

EFEEFEF

HE_Z—t+tHFRZZE—X~F=H

z+—amiﬁ'mm§$awm

AW EEMRAER

EERLEH
BE_E2-—tHER-F-~E=A
E+—H¢¢F’MEEEEWW
AW EEM AL LA o

HERHUEERBRE=ZFREZ
{7

BE_Z—+tHFR-ZF-—AF=A
E+—E¢$F’$“ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ
REESRBEAEME=FTNK

ARLES FEZZZHEER
MERESZIRAZHER  EHR
REMXBZEH

HE_Z—+tHFR-ZF-—AF=A
=t - EﬂﬁﬂL1ﬁﬁx§$
EECREFEERBEEEAR
BAZER  BEERRAEMIZ R
B



39 Benefits and interests of directors
(Continued)

)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company has a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of 31st March 2017 and 2016 or at any time during
the years ended 31st March 2017 and 2016.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR R MR

39 EFRIRER 2

(f)

EERTS  RENSHDPZEKX
@
RABEERERARDFAMET L
R-ZB—LtER-ZZE-XRF=A
=t+t—HBFEZ£ARBE=_T—tF
R-ZE—RE=ZA=+—HLEFE
EAEBNAE N B AEBMER
BEECZRS  RHRENTEHE
RREEEEE AT ©
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Vi NANCIAL SUMMARY

AFHBUE

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years are as follows:

Results

Loss attributable to

owners of the Company

Assets and liabilities

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total equity

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (=i iR 44 & S &£ B B R 2 |

BEWMT :

Year ended 31st March
BEFE=B=1+—HLEE

FEERBEIBAMBFE2XE EEH

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
-t —FT-AE —E—HFE —E—NOFE —T—=
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
F#&iT FET FET FET FET
Ef |
ANBER AEG
518 (82,259) (66,188) (39,338) (23,896) (48,735)
As at 31st March
R=B=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE—tE —ZE2—RF —ZE-HF ZE-WOF =ZZ-=F
HK$000  HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
BEHRAR
BMEE 842,989 928,163 707,180 709,108 711,073
HmeE (155,367)  (168,243)  (172,239)  (151,844)  (135,570)
B 687,622 759,920 534,941 557,264 575,503




F PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ETEREWMEM R

Percentage

of Group’s

interests

Address Type Lease term xEEAZ
4k WA HHER ERESL

Shop 2 on Ground Floor Commercial Medium 100%
Po Sun Mansion
No. 89 Bulkeley Street
Hung Hom, Kowloon
FUBEALHY [GES H
BHAHE 895
BHKRE
T 2 SR

Workshop No. 5, Nos. 15-23 and 25-28 Industrial Medium 100%
on 17th Floor Metro Centre
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
hENFEE I¥ HHR
iR BT 32 5%
EBRUTE
55% ~ 15-2335 ) 25-28 5 T35

Workshop Nos. 1-2 Industrial Medium 100%
on 10th Floor Metro Centre
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
NENFEE I¥% HHR
FiR BT 32 5%
EEHRL1048
1-285 T35

Factory Unit Nos. 23 and 24 on 5th Floor and Industrial Medium 100%
Car Parking Space No. V18 on Basement
Kowloon Bay Industrial Centre
No. 15 Wang Hoi Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
hENFEE I H
RHEE 155
NEEB T AL
5 #2355 R 2455 TMEE
Rt E V18 SR

House No. 28 and Car Park Nos. 59 and 60 Residential Medium 100%
The Villa Horizon
No. 8 Silver Stream Path, Silverstrand
Sai Kung, New Territories

HAAE = P
RAREIRRE8R
BRE

2895 E KR 5995 & 60 S5 E A
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CHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
TEREYEMR

Percentage

of Group’s

interests

Address Type Lease term xEEAZ
4k WA HHER L §=1=3" 14

Units 801-814 on Level 8 of West Tower Yangcheng Commercial Medium 100%
International Commercial Center
Tiyu East Road, Tianhe District
Guangzhou
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME [GES H
&M
R ERE B R
FIHBEEEE
P 81£801-814 &

Units 2101-2106 on 21/F of Block 3 Commercial Medium 70%
Zone A1 of Qi Dong District
Guan Yin Shan Guo Ji Sheng Wu Ying Yun Zhong Xin
Si Ming District
Xiamen
The People’s Republic of China
FEARANE [EES HHR
=P
BHE
BELBEREHHEEEFR O
RRENE A1 i3
355121 /B2101-2106 BT

Flat 1 on Level 3 Residential Medium 100%
No. 2 Hua Xiao Street
Tianhe Ming Ya Court
Tianhe East Road, Tianhe District
Guangzhou
The People’s Republic of China
FEARANE = HHR
BM
R 18 R ST R %
PNEEY 2T
ERA 25
3B1E
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